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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good afternoon.

          3  Good afternoon. I hope everyone has found their way

          4  here. This was supposed to be across the street but

          5  then there is a big hearing over there so they asked

          6  us if we could do business over here. Hopefully

          7  people are being lead to the right place.

          8                 Good afternoon. My name is Jim

          9  Gennaro, I Chair the Council's Committee on

         10  Environmental Protection.

         11                 Today we're holding a hearing on

         12  Intro. 375, legislation that seeks to ensure the

         13  long-term protection of the City's drinking water

         14  supply.

         15                 We will also be hearing Intro. 376.

         16  Legislation that has been requested by the New York

         17  City DEP to extend the deadline for finalizing a

         18  comprehensive watershed protection plan for Jamaica

         19  Bay.

         20                 I'd like to begin with Intro. No.

         21  375, the New York City Water Supply Protection Act.

         22  Drinking water, as we all know, is the lifeblood of

         23  New York City. Each day millions of City residents

         24  and visitors alike are sustained by over a billion

         25  gallons of pure, healthy drinking water.
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          2                 The water is derived from reservoirs

          3  and lakes and a watershed that is over 1 million

          4  acres and goes as far north as 125 miles and west of

          5  the City.

          6                 About 90 percent of this water comes

          7  from the Catskill Delaware system west of Hudson,

          8  many of us refer to it as the "Cat/Del System."

          9                 The quality of New York City's

         10  drinking water, both now and in the future, is

         11  therefore linked to the protection of this

         12  watershed.

         13                 I'll focus my opening comments on the

         14  centerpiece of the legislation.

         15                 The ten-year goal of acquiring at

         16  least an additional 75,000 acres of land in the

         17  watershed. As an aside, it's important to recognize

         18  this goal is not simply pulled out of the air.

         19                 Over the last ten years the City has

         20  acquired roughly 75,000 acres of land in the

         21  watershed. The bill simply sets a goal for the City

         22  to purchase the same amount of land over the next

         23  ten years. And as many of us know, there's roughly

         24  160,000 acres of priority land that are still out

         25  there. That would be a bigger number, but for the
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          2  fact that the watershed agreement holds certain

          3  lands, even though they are priority, as not lands

          4  which the City can pursue.

          5                 So, there's 160,000 acres of priority

          6  lands out there, which doesn't count the 74 we're

          7  already purchased. So this bill simply says we

          8  should purchase 75,000 acres over the next ten years

          9  to stay the course, if you will.

         10                 Related to the bill's ten-year goal,

         11  some will ask, why should the City commit to

         12  acquiring another 75 acres of watershed land? I

         13  think that this is the wrong question. I believe the

         14  right question is, why wouldn't the City commit to

         15  acquiring another 75,000 acres?

         16                 Right now the City has a waiver,

         17  given to us by the USEPA, that does allow the City

         18  to avoid having to filter it's West of Hudson

         19  drinking water, and in 2005 that was 98 percent of

         20  the City's drinking water.

         21                 This waiver called "The Filtration

         22  Avoidance Determination," or FAD, has been given to

         23  the City because currently USEPA believes the City

         24  is doing enough to protect the Catskill Delaware

         25  watershed, and therefore doing enough to protect our
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          2  drinking water.

          3                 And as we said, we have done a good

          4  job over the last ten years with purchasing 75,000

          5  acres of land. If USEPA were to decide wasn't

          6  protecting our drinking water well enough, the

          7  agency could rescind the FAD at any time.

          8                 The City would then need to build a

          9  plan to filter its CAT/Del drinking water, much like

         10  it's building the filter plant for the Croton

         11  System.

         12                 The capital cost of building such a

         13  filtration plant for the CAT/Del system is estimated

         14  at five to ten billion, billion with a b, with

         15  annual operation and maintenance costs of around

         16  $100 million per year, plus hundreds of millions of

         17  dollars in debt service costs.

         18                 This year the City increased water

         19  and sewer rates by 9.4 percent and is predicting

         20  rate increases of this magnitude for the foreseeable

         21  future. This 9.4 percent increase was based in large

         22  part to an unexpected $80 million increases in

         23  operating and maintenance costs. So, if 80 million

         24  in new expenses resulted in a 9.4 percent rate

         25  increase, just imagine what would happen if it was
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          2  suddenly saddled with a bill for 10 billion in

          3  capital, 100 million in annual O&M, plus hundreds of

          4  millions in debt service. The impact on rates would

          5  be enormous. The impact on ratepayers would be

          6  devastating.

          7                 So, it seems to me that there is an

          8  imperative for the sake of millions in New York

          9  City, for millions of New York City residents who

         10  pay water bills, that this City protect its

         11  watershed and keep its FAD, not just the FAD which

         12  is going to come up next year, but the FAD in

         13  perpetuity. Not just for another year, but as far as

         14  I'm concerned, forever.

         15                 And it is widely agreed, including by

         16  scientists and watershed experts, including those

         17  who have specifically examined New York City's

         18  watershed, that the single, most effective way of

         19  protecting this watershed, and thus keeping its FAD,

         20  is through land acquisition.

         21                 I want to make brief reference to

         22  testimony that we got from Professor, to sort of

         23  buttress his point, Professor Paul Barton, Associate

         24  Professor of the Forest Resources, co-director of

         25  the US Forest Service, UMASS, Amhurst Watershed
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          2  Partnership (phonetic), who is member of the

          3  National Research Council, a committee to review New

          4  York City's watershed management strategy from 1997

          5  to 2000.

          6                 And he says a lot of good things

          7  about legislation but the quote here is, "In

          8  summary, I believe the tone and intent of the

          9  proposed legislation is right on the mark. I endorse

         10  the concept of willing buyer, willing seller

         11  purchase of land or conservation easements, coupled

         12  with reasonable area goals for a ten-year program.

         13                 And I will also point out that those

         14  of you who are following this issue long enough,

         15  going back to 1992, 1993, when we had the report of

         16  the expert panel on the New York City's water

         17  supply, this is a panel that was convened by EPA

         18  when it was asked by the City to grant this

         19  filtration avoidance. EP had some reservations about

         20  the amount of control we had up in our watershed and

         21  put together a panel, a Blue Ribbon Panel of

         22  watershed experts from around the country to see

         23  whether or not New York City was a good candidate

         24  for filtration avoidance.

         25                 And that report from 1993 indicated
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          2  that we probably -- that we did not control enough

          3  land up in the watershed to be a good candidate for

          4  filtration avoidance.

          5                 Notwithstanding that, the EPA has

          6  taken a chance on us and has given us the ability,

          7  which we have done very well over the last two

          8  years, to make sure that we could come this far.

          9  People should never lose sight of the fact that we

         10  started out, we weren't the perfect candidate for

         11  filtration avoidance. The leader of watershed

         12  experts in the country said you can't get enough

         13  land to really do everything you need to do.

         14                 But, you know, EPA was willing to

         15  work with us and say, look, we'll buy up a lot of

         16  land, but we'll also do watershed regulations, you

         17  know, septics, forestry, you know, agricultural, all

         18  the other elements of the program, and we'll be able

         19  to protect this system in perpetuity. And we

         20  shouldn't rest on our laurels, the fact that we have

         21  done so well for the last ten years.

         22                 There was 160,000 acres of priority

         23  land out there and ultimately, if I was chairman of

         24  this Committee forever, I would make sure that we

         25  got it all. But, you know, speaking ten years out,
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          2  it's extremely important that we stay the course and

          3  get at least another 75,000 acres over the next ten

          4  years of that 160.

          5                 And, so, let me finish my statement.

          6  Given the tremendous final impact that losing the

          7  FAD would have on millions of New Yorkers, coupled

          8  with the fact that we know the single best way to

          9  avoid this tremendous impact is by continuing to

         10  inquire and protect watershed lands, I, again, think

         11  that the right question is, why wouldn't the City

         12  commit to acquiring another 75,000 acres of land in

         13  our watershed.

         14                 And before concluding, I would like

         15  to touch on one other issue regarding this that I'm

         16  certain will come up in the course of discussing

         17  this bill today.

         18                 The issue of relations with the

         19  Upstate watershed communities.

         20                 This legislation recognizes that a

         21  critical element in safeguarding our drinking water

         22  is to continue and to strengthen the partnership

         23  between the City and the communities whose lands

         24  ultimately drain into the City's reservoirs.

         25                 Based on past and current comments we
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          2  received from the Upstate Watershed communities

          3  regarding this bill, I believe that one of the most

          4  essential elements in strengthening this partnership

          5  is providing for additional opportunities for

          6  recreation on newly acquired City-owned watershed

          7  lands, where of course, such activities are

          8  completely consistent with the 1997 watershed MOA

          9  and also with the water quality protection.

         10                 By providing for consistent uses on

         11  its watershed lands, the City can assist the

         12  watershed communities to meet the recreational need

         13  of their residents, and to support

         14  appropriately-scaled tourism activities.

         15                 I believe that once a City replaces

         16  its current recreational use regulations, the

         17  relationship between the City and the Upstate

         18  watershed communities will be greatly improved.

         19                 I hope we can spend some time talking

         20  about this aspect today.

         21                 Quickly, I should mention the second

         22  bill that we'll be hearing today, Intro. 376,

         23  legislation requested by the City Department of

         24  Environmental Protection to extend the deadline for

         25  finalizing a comprehensive watershed protection plan
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          2  for Jamaica Bay.

          3                 The bill before us proposes to push a

          4  deadline one year to September of 2007 from

          5  September 2006.

          6                 At the same time, the bill also makes

          7  sure that the Watershed Protection Plan Advisory

          8  Committee, which I believe all agree thus far has

          9  been a great value, it continues to have a role in

         10  the development of the plan.

         11                 So, I thank all of you for coming to

         12  today's hearing. I look forward to your testimony,

         13  everyone's testimony on the bills we have before us

         14  today, and I'm grateful to have the DEP Commissioner

         15  Emily Lloyd with us today to present testimony on

         16  the bills, and it's always great to have the

         17  Commissioner here with us. I greatly admire what she

         18  has done to protect the watershed and to buy Upstate

         19  lands, so much so that I'm taking her actions and

         20  crystallizing them in law, because they should just

         21  go on forever and ever. How's that? How's that?

         22                 So, Emily, it's a pleasure to have

         23  you and your good staff with us here today. I would

         24  just like to thank the staff that made this hearing

         25  possible, Donna DeCostanzo, the Counsel to the
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          2  Committee; my own Chief of Staff Peter Washburn,

          3  Jean Iverson (phonetic), my press person.

          4                 I would like to ask Donna to give the

          5  oath and then you can state your name and proceed

          6  with your good testimony. Thank you.

          7                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          8  right hand.

          9                 In the testimony that you're about to

         10  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         11  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         12                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I do.

         13                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you have a

         15  statement? A written statement?

         16                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: It's on its way.

         17  I'm sorry. I think this is the second time I've done

         18  this in a row, but it has some last-minute edits

         19  going into it, and will be here shortly.

         20                 Good afternoon, Chairman Gennaro. And

         21  I want to introduce, I think you know Dave Warren,

         22  who is Acting Deputy Commissioner for the Bureau of

         23  Water Supply, and I thank you for the opportunity to

         24  testify this afternoon on the two bills, Intro. 375,

         25  which creates new requirements for Watershed
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          2  Protection Program, and I think that I will be able

          3  to address some of your questions; and Intro. 376

          4  which modifies the submission for Jamaica Bay

          5  Watershed Plan.

          6                 Before I explain my comments on the

          7  bills, I would like to acknowledge that Intro. 375

          8  reflects several recommendations made by DEP in

          9  discussions of earlier versions of the bill.

         10                 I, and my staff, appreciate the

         11  cooperation shown by the Council in listening to and

         12  giving consideration to our earlier comments.

         13                 Although DEP continues to have

         14  serious concerns with some provisions of Intro. 375,

         15  I offer my comments today in the same spirit of

         16  cooperation, candor and a shared interest in the

         17  goals of watershed protection both Upstate and

         18  Downstate that I know we share.

         19                 Of the two bills on today's agenda,

         20  Intro. 375 is the more substantive one, so I will

         21  discuss it first.

         22                 The provision of Intro. 375 that most

         23  concerns us, is the proposed section 24-368(a),

         24  which would establish a goal of purchasing 75,000

         25  acres within the Cat/Del System between the years
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          2  2007 and 2017. That provision is essentially

          3  unchanged from the earlier incarnations of Intro.

          4  375.

          5                 As EP representatives indicated at

          6  hearings on the predecessor bills, DEP cannot

          7  support this type of numerical acreage goal. Our

          8  position is based on a number of considerations:

          9                 First, and most importantly, you

         10  know, of course, that we are completely committed to

         11  continuing to add important land to our area that is

         12  protected in the watershed. However, we feel that

         13  this provision is inconsistent, both with the

         14  Memorandum of Agreement, and the land acquisition

         15  permit issue by New York State, when the MOA was

         16  approved.

         17                 As many of you know, the MOA is one

         18  of most critical documents defining our watershed

         19  program generally, and the land acquisition program

         20  specifically. It memorializes a very delicate

         21  balance that was struck among the interests of the

         22  City, the interests of the watershed host

         23  communities, the interest of state and federal

         24  regulators and several environmental groups seated

         25  at today's hearing. It does not create goals for
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          2  land acquisition expressed in terms of number of

          3  acres acquired.

          4                 The MOA does provide that the City

          5  will spend up to $300 million on its land

          6  acquisition program in the Cat/Del, and another 10

          7  million in Croton, actually another 28.5 million has

          8  since been dedicated and spent in Croton. It sets

          9  goals for the numbers of acres that should be

         10  solicited for acquisition and creates a very complex

         11  process for soliciting, appraising and purchasing

         12  land in the Watershed. But it emphatically does not

         13  provide acreage targets for the acquisition of

         14  watershed land. Not that the issue didn't come up

         15  during the MOU negotiations, I've been told by many

         16  of those involved that it came up many times. The

         17  issue was raised, discussed, rejected by the

         18  watershed communities, because to them a goal

         19  expressed in the number of acres acquired was

         20  inconsistent with the City's agreement to an

         21  acquisition program based on willing sellers,

         22  accepting an offer from the City based on fair

         23  market value.

         24                 When the City agreed to forego the

         25  power of condemnation to acquire property, we agreed
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          2  that the City's watershed protection needs could be

          3  met by a completely voluntary land acquisition

          4  program that was not aided by either monetary or

          5  illegal coercion.

          6                 Because our program is based

          7  exclusively on the availability of sellers willing

          8  to part with their acres at fair market value, it is

          9  by nature somewhat unpredictable and does not lend

         10  itself to quantifiable goals. It's subtler than

         11  that. But that does not mean it has not affected

         12  real change.

         13                 In the ten years since the MOA was

         14  signed and the land acquisition permit issued, the

         15  City's watershed land acquisition program has been

         16  widely considered to be very successful and rightly

         17  so. Enacting Intro. 375 would change a carefully

         18  crafted methods that have created a successful

         19  program by superimposing on it a goal that is not

         20  supported by DEP and has not been endorsed by the

         21  other parties of the MOA.

         22                 Even if Intro. 375's land acquisition

         23  goal is considered advisory and technically

         24  unenforceable, it nonetheless assumes that we will

         25  be able to control the amount of land the watershed
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          2  owners will be willing to part with in the ten-year

          3  period.

          4                 This is a highly questionable

          5  assumption, which I do not believe reflects the

          6  inevitable variation in the watershed land market.

          7                 There are related concerns that I

          8  believe is important to mention. Given legislated

          9  goals, the City would feel pressured to abandon its

         10  policy of offering fair market value. Not only could

         11  this distort the natural evolution of land values in

         12  the watershed, it could also encourage land owners

         13  to set a higher price and hold out until we felt

         14  pressured enough to pay that price. This could

         15  actually slow the rate of acquisition. It might also

         16  create pressure on DEP to abandon its focus on the

         17  most valuable parcels and spend precious resources

         18  on less critical land in order to reach the goal.

         19                 Finally, I think that it is also

         20  important to note that the people who would pay

         21  those inflated prices would be New York City's

         22  ratepayers who are already paying increasing rates

         23  to carry out the ambitious capital program required

         24  by environmental regulation.

         25                 The time frame of the goal proposed
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          2  in Section 24-368(a) is also a matter of concern,

          3  because it creates a ten-year goal for land

          4  acquisition. As you know, early next year, both the

          5  FAD and the land acquisition permit expire.

          6                 In testimony before the Council, DEP

          7  has explained that it is our hope and expectation

          8  that early next year the State and federal

          9  regulators will agree to a five-year renewal of the

         10  FAD and the land acquisition permit.

         11                 If we receive those five-year

         12  extensions, DEP intends to continue its land

         13  acquisitions for at least five years.

         14                 Currently, of the $300 million in the

         15  ten-year plan for acquisition, land acquisition for

         16  Cat/Del, approximately $229 million has been

         17  committed to date. Depending on our success at

         18  closing on parcels, that remaining $71 million could

         19  be expended in the near future.

         20                 The extent of which the City is

         21  willing to commit additional funds for land

         22  acquisition is a subject that we expect to discuss

         23  with our regulators during the discussions on FAD

         24  renewal.

         25                 One of the factors that the City will
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          2  consider before making any additional financial

          3  commitments to land acquisition, is a water quality

          4  benefits afforded by purchasing additional land,

          5  versus financial burden posed by the land ownership.

          6                 Intro. 375 also references the

          7  importance of conservation easement.

          8                 DEP fully intends to continue

          9  employing conservation easements where appropriate,

         10  as a tool to discourage sensitive lands from being

         11  used in ways incompatible with water quality

         12  protection.

         13                 Although conservation easements are

         14  less expensive than acquisition, they have drawbacks

         15  as well.

         16                 Properties subject to conservation

         17  easements require more oversight and a greater

         18  commitment of staff resources for monitoring to

         19  ensure compliance with easement conditions,

         20  monitoring that might not be necessary where the

         21  City has acquired the property and fully controls

         22  access.

         23                 Further, the choice between pursuing

         24  free acquisition versus a conservation -- fee

         25  acquisition versus a conservation easement, is
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          2  largely a land-owner-driven process.

          3                 Few who want to sell in fee simple

          4  can be convinced to sell a conservation easement,

          5  and fewer still who want to sell conservation

          6  easements can be convinced to sell the parcel

          7  outright. That's why we continue to pursue both of

          8  these aggressively.

          9                 Although our most critical concern

         10  with Intro. 375 arises out of the land acquisition

         11  goal created by 24-368(a), I also have much briefer

         12  comments on other provisions of the bill pertaining

         13  to reporting requirements, recreational use

         14  regulations and the creation of a Croton Watershed

         15  protection plan.

         16                 With respect to reporting

         17  requirements, Intro. 375 requires DEP to submit by

         18  November 2006, with a similar mandate again in 2011,

         19  a report to the Mayor and Speaker providing an

         20  assessment and plan for the Land Acquisition

         21  Program.

         22                 Pursuant to our current FAD, the

         23  final Cat/Del Watershed Protection Plan must be

         24  submitted to EPA and the State of New York by

         25  December 14th, 2006. At that point, EPA will conduct
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          2  a final review and hold public hearings on the

          3  adequacy of the plan as a basis for a continuation

          4  of the City's FAD.

          5                 Submittal of the plan to the Council

          6  in advance of the federal due date could adversely

          7  affect the negotiation process between the City and

          8  its regulators, which is in fact underway already.

          9                 At a minimum, it would divert

         10  watershed protection programs staff away from their

         11  primary focus of creating a watershed protection

         12  plan that will be successful in convincing the State

         13  and federal regulators to continue to grant the FAD.

         14                 The other component of the reporting

         15  requirement section is the submission of a biannual

         16  report to the Mayor and Speaker proposed by Section

         17  24-371.

         18                 Although we agree on the merits of

         19  this section, the new FAD is very likely to contain

         20  some midterm reporting requirement.

         21                 Rather than duplicate the reporting

         22  cycle that we expect to see in the next FAD, DEP can

         23  commit to submit simultaneously to Council the same

         24  midterm report that we expect to be submitting to

         25  the State and federal regulators under the next FAD.
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          2                 Section 24-369 of the legislation

          3  provides that DEP "shall provide for increased

          4  recreational use opportunities as is necessary to

          5  ensure consistency with a 1997 Watershed Agreement"

          6  meaning the MOA.

          7                 For the record, DEP disputes the

          8  assertion that the current regulations are in

          9  violation of the MOA's letter or its spirit.

         10                 Nonetheless, DEP is actively

         11  considering expanding its recreational regulations

         12  to allow for new activities, including small game

         13  hunting, provided that these new activities are

         14  conducted in a way that they do not jeopardize

         15  public safety or our drinking water. With the

         16  exception of the sentence I just quoted, our goals

         17  are consistent with the language of Section 24-369.

         18                 My final comments on Intro. 375 are

         19  on Section 24-370 of the bill, which creates a

         20  requirement that DEP establish a goal pursuing

         21  increased watershed protection and land acquisition

         22  in the Croton Watershed.

         23                 DEP continues to be willing to

         24  discuss our Croton Watershed Protection measures

         25  with the Council through the submission of reports
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          2  or through oversight hearings or both. But the

          3  language of Section 24-370 does not explicitly take

          4  into account some key facts, such as the differences

          5  in watershed protection between the Croton and

          6  Catskill Delaware watersheds, or the fact that DEP

          7  is building a filtration facility due to the water

          8  quality problems in the Croton system.

          9                 While DEP will continue to pursue

         10  land acquisitions in the Croton watershed on a

         11  case-by-case basis, we no longer have a large scale

         12  land acquisition program active in that watershed

         13  due to that cost of land in Westchester and Putnam

         14  Counties.

         15                 Our watershed protection efforts in

         16  the Croton system are targeted at completing the

         17  upgrades of the approximately 70 wastewater

         18  treatment plants in that watershed at a cost in the

         19  range of $250 million.

         20                 DEP also annually reviews hundreds of

         21  proposed development projects in Croton Watershed to

         22  assure compliance with the water quality protection

         23  standards in our regulations.

         24                 Where necessary, we issue Notices of

         25  Violations to stop projects that have not been
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          2  approved, or that are conducting work outside the

          3  conditions of our approval.

          4                 Section 24-370 specifically mentions

          5  the "Croton Watershed Management Strategy" and

          6  requires that we assess its effectiveness. Although

          7  staff is familiar with the Croton Strategy, it is

          8  actually more a compilation or inventory of

          9  pollutant sources and watershed characteristics, and

         10  less a watershed protection plan whose effectiveness

         11  we can assess.

         12                 However, we have no objections to

         13  discussing with the Council how the Croton strategy

         14  guides or shapes our goals for watershed protection

         15  in the Croton system.

         16                 That concludes my comments on Intro

         17  375. I look forward to discussing further with the

         18  Council the important issues raised by this

         19  legislation.

         20                 My thanks to Chairman Gennaro and

         21  staff for developing and introducing Intro 376, the

         22  other piece of legislation on today's agenda. Intro

         23  376 extends the deadline for preparation of the

         24  report on Jamaica Bay required by Local Law 71 of

         25  2005.
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          2                 DEP is well into the process of

          3  identifying the unique characteristics of this

          4  highly urbanized watershed so that we can make

          5  recommendations on watershed protection that are, to

          6  the greatest extent possible, both specific and

          7  comprehensive. Through monthly meetings with the

          8  Advisory Committee and additional meetings with the

          9  general public, DEP has actively sought the input of

         10  the many stakeholders who have some expertise with

         11  respect to Jamaica Bay.

         12                 As I have previously stated, the

         13  scope of the watershed protection plan required by

         14  Local Law 71 was extremely broad, and the schedule

         15  for its completion was extremely ambitious. I am

         16  very pleased that the Council has acknowledged that

         17  it is not possible to expect to complete watershed

         18  protection plans by September 1st, 2001 (sic), now

         19  that we are well into the work, as well as other

         20  mandates related to Jamaica Bay.

         21                 While extending the plan to September

         22  1st, 2007 is helpful, I propose that the deadline be

         23  extended until the end of 2007 so that staff may

         24  accomplish the numerous and extensive tasks outlined

         25  in Local Law 71, conduct public outreach and have as
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          2  much time as possible to review and comment on the

          3  recommendations of Committee members and the public.

          4                 Although we have no problem with the

          5  provision of the bill that requires an interim

          6  report in September 2006, requiring a final report

          7  in September 2007 means trying to conduct public

          8  outreach during the summer, after we've received and

          9  comment on the Advisory Committee's recommendations.

         10                 Since the summer is not the opportune

         11  time to conduct an effective public outreach and

         12  because the extra few months may allow for a better

         13  report, DEP recommends that the final deadline be

         14  extended to December 31st, 2007.

         15                 Ideally, if the Council agreed with

         16  this recommendation, the deadline for submission of

         17  a draft plan to the Advisory Committee would be

         18  changed from March 2007 to June 2007.

         19                 Finally, I would ask the Committee to

         20  provide a three to five-year time period in lieu of

         21  the two-year time frame in which to report on the

         22  implementation of the plan, as that is the most

         23  practical and appropriate time that will allow us to

         24  evaluate pilot programs which were designed to

         25  improve water quality. These pilots incorporate best
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          2  management practices that identify actual sites

          3  capable of capturing, detaining and treating a

          4  meaningful percentage of the bay's stormwater.

          5                 As a practical matter, DEP also needs

          6  an adequate amount of time to ensure that the

          7  procurement process needed to hire our consultants

          8  is in place.

          9                 I did not introduce Deputy

         10  Commissioner Angela LaCotta (phonetic). She is the

         11  person who is responsible for managing our

         12  participation in the development of the Jamaica

         13  Watershed Plan and she will join me to answer

         14  questions about that piece of legislation.

         15                 I thank you for the opportunity to

         16  comment on these two very important pieces of

         17  legislation. I will be happy to answer questions

         18  that you may have. Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         20  Commissioner. Thank you for your comprehensive

         21  testimony.

         22                 We're joined by Council Member Peter

         23  Vallone, a member of this Committee. Thank you,

         24  Peter. This is a very, very busy day in the Council.

         25  Thanks for being here today.
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          2                 I have some prepared questions, but

          3  first I have some comments. As I was going through

          4  your statement, some things jumped out at me. You

          5  know, based on prior testimony to this Committee,

          6  DEP, through you and through your surrogates, have

          7  already said on the record that DEP intends to

          8  purchase 7,000, 7-, to 8,000 acres per year over the

          9  next five years. So, what we're really talking about

         10  is the years out from five years, from five years

         11  hence, and a lot of the items built into your

         12  statement here just seem very, very dramatic in

         13  terms of we're doing it now, we're going to be doing

         14  it for the next five years, by your own statement in

         15  previous hearings. We are all cognizant of the

         16  development pressures in the Catskills and what this

         17  bill really seeks to do is to solidify what has been

         18  going on, what has already projected to go on in the

         19  next five years, and we're just looking at the five

         20  years past that.

         21                 And I was surprised at some of the,

         22  you know, dramatic statements in your testimony, and

         23  so how do you reconcile that?

         24                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, I think

         25  there are two questions, and one is, whether the
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          2  difference between having an intent and having a

          3  desire to accomplish something, which is to continue

          4  to significantly increase the amount of land that we

          5  control either to purchase the fee or through

          6  acquiring conservation easements or to the LACK

          7  Program (phonetic), certainly that is something that

          8  we intend and desire to do.

          9                 I think the question for me is

         10  whether having a legislative goal operating external

         11  to the MOA and to the FAD changes the tone of that

         12  program in terms of how we carry it out. That's

         13  number one.

         14                 And I think the other is that having

         15  it not be in sync with the timing of the FAD is a

         16  concern to me because the FAD cycle is one that our

         17  thinking is geared to, that our discussions are

         18  geared to with our regulatory agencies, and that we

         19  think is an appropriate way to focus on it because

         20  that's the duration of our waiver for building the

         21  plant.

         22                 And it is, there's a give and take

         23  between ourselves and EPA. They would like us to

         24  continue to acquire land, which we want to do, and

         25  we, in return, would like a waiver. And if we are
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          2  externally required to do that, or have a

          3  legislative goal external to that negotiation, I

          4  think that also changes in negotiation for the FAD

          5  beyond the coming FAD, and those are my concerns.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Let's kind

          7  of parse that.

          8                 It's difficult for me to believe that

          9  the City would be held in any kind of unfavorable

         10  light by the regulators if it sought to, if it

         11  sought to crystallize some of the key cornerstones

         12  in what has worked to protect the watershed and set

         13  them out in law, particularly when they're

         14  completely consistent with what has happened.

         15                 And you know, while regulators and

         16  regulatory requirements like you'd find in the FAD,

         17  all have a place, and that's all well and good, but

         18  at the end of the day the Legislature is not some

         19  entity that is, as you say, external to this.

         20                 I mean, the Legislature represents

         21  the people, the 8 million people in New York City

         22  who will drink the water, and who have a say in how

         23  that is protected.

         24                 You, as agency Commissioner, of

         25  course, you know, you get the job of interacting
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          2  with legislators, and interacting with the

          3  regulators and the Upstate communities to trying to

          4  put, you know, environmental protection, watershed

          5  protection into, you know, programs that will work,

          6  but at the end of the day, you know, I, as Chairman,

          7  and I think my colleagues would back me up, as much

          8  as it is important to adhere to regulatory

          9  requirements, you know, at the end of the day the

         10  goal is protecting the watershed in perpetuity. And

         11  if we're seen as aggressive in doing that, I think

         12  that only helps us with the regulators, and I don't

         13  think it hurts us too much with the Upstate

         14  communities by virtue of their absence here today.

         15                 I think they're more concerned about

         16  recreation. If they were really upset with the

         17  fundamental thrust of this legislation, which would

         18  be the continuation of the land acquisition, they

         19  would be here in force, signed up to testify to say

         20  how this was something that was unacceptable to

         21  them.

         22                 They're not here, and, so, I don't

         23  know who the real opponents to this bill would be,

         24  other than perhaps the people at OMB, who God bless

         25  them, I worked at OMB, people are always looking to
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          2  save a buck and that's what, you know, they ought to

          3  be doing.

          4                 But, you know, that's how I reply to

          5  your answer. If you want to come back with

          6  something, that's fine.

          7                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, I really

          8  don't want to be redundant, and perhaps I don't want

          9  to admit that my testimony is not persuasive, but I

         10  have spent the last 15 years of my career acquiring

         11  real estate, and I think that when you change the

         12  conditions under which you've been doing a series of

         13  acquisitions, it changes the tone and it has, could

         14  have unintended consequences.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You'll have to

         16  forgive me, but I don't see the change. We're not

         17  creating mandates. We're creating goals and we're

         18  trying to figure out a roadmap to get to that goal.

         19  We're not asking anyone to, we're not coercing you,

         20  we're not doing legal coercion here. It's a willing

         21  buyer, willing seller, all the same things that the

         22  MOA spells out, saying you can't touch a piece of

         23  land if it's got a building on it. You can't do that

         24  and you can't use -- all that stuff is still in

         25  effect. It's the same game plan, just extended,
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          2  because we want to take a little bit longer view

          3  than the regulatory community that's always just

          4  looking for that next sort of period of time or the

          5  next window.

          6                 And I have appreciation. You're for

          7  the regulatory community, that has to look at the

          8  future in finite bits of time. But as Chairman of

          9  this Committee, I think it's my purpose to, when I

         10  can, to try to set long-term policy that supports

         11  what's going on in sort of like the short-term

         12  increments, five years five years five years, and

         13  looks further down the road.

         14                 I mean, all you've got to do is just

         15  pick up a copy of the 1993 Daniel Oaken Report about

         16  how they believe that the City will not be able to

         17  acquire enough land to be a really good candidate

         18  for the infiltration avoidance.

         19                 I think people forget that report,

         20  and I think that maybe a foot here (sic) is that

         21  maybe the folks at OMB don't have the same belief in

         22  sort of long-term watershed protection that, you

         23  know, we all do. And maybe they're all thinking, I

         24  don't know, I don't want to speak for them, but

         25  maybe they think, look, we're buying all this land,
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          2  but we're going to have to filter ultimately, and so

          3  what we don't want is to have this bill to pay off

          4  all this land, all the taxes that are going to come

          5  from it every year, and this $10 billion filtration

          6  plant, and all those expenses too.

          7                 So, I think maybe this is the way

          8  we're looking at, and these are there real, you

          9  know, opponents of the bill. But I think it's a

         10  much, you know, better bang for our buck if we go

         11  head-long into trying to make permanent filtration

         12  avoidance work, and the only way that we're going to

         13  make permanent filtration avoidance work, is to buy

         14  all of the priority lands up there, and that will be

         15  a much, much cheaper, and much better for a

         16  long-term, you know, water quality if we succeed in

         17  doing that.

         18                 This bill puts us on that track. And

         19  I don't see anyone, EPA, or anyone else, State

         20  Health Department or even the Upstate community that

         21  has a big problem with that. I think OMB has a

         22  problem with that. That's my own editorial comment.

         23                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, I don't

         24  know if you've been in discussions with OMB, and

         25  perhaps you know something that I don't know, but I
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          2  have not discussed this with them. I assume that it

          3  is my responsibility to recommend to them what I

          4  think we should be doing. So, I can absolutely tell

          5  you that that is not figured at all in my testimony.

          6                 The focus of my testimony is how to

          7  carry out and to continue what I believe has been an

          8  extremely successful program.

          9                 And I think that there are elements

         10  of what we do that work in the best possible way.

         11  Staff goes back, as I think you know, time after

         12  time after time, they really stay with their

         13  outreach to people who own land. They have been

         14  successful, I think completely consistent with the

         15  hopes that everyone had, in terms of what might be

         16  acquired over this period of time, and I think that

         17  I have to admit that I'm a little baffled as to why

         18  there is the need to intervene in a program that has

         19  been extremely successful, and which by the acts of

         20  our regulatory agencies, will clearly be required to

         21  carry on in order to continue to be able to avoid

         22  filtration.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I think you've

         24  just succeeded in helping me make my point, is that,

         25  yes, what we're doing makes sense, and you know, the
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          2  next five years you've outlined something that I

          3  think is going to work fine, and I don't have an

          4  issue with that, and I'm not trying to take an issue

          5  with that, but five years from now you're not going

          6  to be there and I'm not going to be here. And, you

          7  know, what you're trying to do, and I think it's

          8  fine, is, you know, put the Department in a position

          9  where it will be able to carry forward filtration

         10  avoidance for the next FAD, keeping the regulators

         11  happy, you're keeping the Upstate folks happy, and

         12  that's all well and fine, that's all well and good,

         13  I don't have an issue with that.

         14                 My job is to try to live a little

         15  beyond this five-year time period to a time when

         16  you're not going to be around and I'm not going to

         17  be around and the positions that we hold, and have

         18  the City on like a long-term trajectory, which gives

         19  us a hope of getting permanent filtration avoidance.

         20                 So, I don't think we should create a

         21  disagreement where I don't think there really is

         22  one. I've been nothing but supportive, nothing other

         23  than supportive of your efforts, although I was a

         24  little surprised to see in your testimony that after

         25  we do the land acquisition, 7-, 7,000 a year over
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          2  the next five years, we'll have to stop and take a

          3  look at whether we need to buy anymore acreage. I

          4  was a little surprised to see that in there.

          5                 Is it your belief that at the end of

          6  five years, at the end of this to five years out, to

          7  five years from now, 7-, 8,000 a year, is it

          8  inconceivable that with regard to land acquisition

          9  five years from now we could be done?

         10                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I think that as

         11  long as our FAD is on five-year cycles, so should

         12  our commitment in terms of land acquisition.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And that's why

         14  I'm here, to make sure that we go beyond that.

         15                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: And I believe

         16  that at the end of the next five years, federal

         17  regulations evolve, as you know, and if at the end

         18  of the next five years the EPA should not continue

         19  to give us a Filtration Avoidance Determination and

         20  requires filtration, I certainly think we would have

         21  to consider carefully whether to continue acquiring

         22  at the same rate, would be the judicious way to

         23  allocate resources, or necessary.

         24                 And let me mention, I think I may

         25  have mentioned in earlier testimony, that we have
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          2  asked EPA to consider a ten-year FAD, and I think

          3  that in that we probably share the goal in thinking

          4  it really makes much more sense --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, it does.

          6                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: And thinking

          7  about long-term filtration avoidance and carrying

          8  out these very significant investments, many of

          9  which have benefits that go way beyond a five-year

         10  cycle and even a ten-year cycle.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         12                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: To really think

         13  more in terms of ten-year. So, I think in that we

         14  are in agreement. But I don't think the two should

         15  be out of sync. I think EPA should be a partner to

         16  that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, I would

         18  love it if we'd do a ten-year FAD cycle. I don't

         19  think that's the case. I don't think the federal EPA

         20  what's to steal State DOH's thunder on this. I think

         21  it's envisioned that State DOH will be in the

         22  driver's seat five years from now, and they may have

         23  something to say about where we go five years from

         24  now.

         25                 But we're back to the same -- you've
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          2  been very good in working with the regulators, and

          3  the regulations are ultimately geared towards

          4  watershed protection. I understand that. You know,

          5  beyond just the crafting of the regulatory

          6  requirements, there is, you know, based on, I know

          7  as a geologist, someone who is involved in this

          8  process for 16 years, someone who followed with

          9  interest, you know, Daniel Oaken, his report from 13

         10  years ago, and someone who also knows even if some

         11  day ultimately, you know, we do have to filter, you

         12  know, one of the cornerstones of the Daniel Oaken

         13  report is that it's important to do robust watershed

         14  protection, you know, whether you ultimately have to

         15  filter or not.

         16                 But it would be terribly shortsighted

         17  if this City didn't use all of the needs at its

         18  disposal to ensure that we gave -- that we use all

         19  of our, you know, life breath to figure out how we

         20  do permanent things to demonstrate, you know,

         21  outstanding commitment to the watershed protection

         22  and all of its manifestations, including land

         23  acquisition and make that commitment, and I think

         24  that will send a very positive statement, you know,

         25  to the regulators five years from now, that this is
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          2  a City that is deeply committed to making it happen,

          3  and so this legislation is really pitched for, you

          4  know, that decision point ten years from now, when

          5  you and I aren't going to be around, but it's

          6  critically important that we stay under a filtration

          7  avoidance track.

          8                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, I'm not at

          9  this point admitting that I'm not going to be here

         10  five years or ten years from now. Although, I

         11  understand that would be optimistic.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If I look at the

         13  tenure of chairs on this Committee, the tenure of

         14  commissioners of your agency, whatever.

         15                 Let me say that I hope it's you.

         16                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Thank you.

         17                 My question would be then if five

         18  years from now, if EPA or DOH, or whoever, is taking

         19  that responsibility denies us a waiver and requires

         20  us to build a filtration plant, is the purpose of

         21  this legislation to nonetheless have us continue to

         22  acquire land at the same rate? Even though we no

         23  longer have a FAD?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Could you just

         25  --
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          2                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I'm saying just

          3  based on your comments, about five years from now,

          4  the uncertainty of what EPA or DOH would do, is the

          5  intent of this legislation if we were denied a

          6  filtration avoidance determination five years from

          7  now, that there would still be the goal that we

          8  would continue to acquire at the same rate?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But you're

         10  missing my point because we're not going to be

         11  denied, because of this bill. This is the bill. This

         12  is like filtration avoidance, determination, denial

         13  insurance. That's what this bill is.

         14                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: From your lips to

         15  God's ears.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If it were up to

         17  me, this bill might say get 160,000 acres over the

         18  next ten years to get all the priority lands, that

         19  would be going in the absolute absolute. But we

         20  live, you know, people tell me try to be reasonable.

         21  Well, fine. So, we've got something that's working.

         22  Lets keep it going, let's make that assurance, let's

         23  set it as a goal, something different than a

         24  mandate, a mandate you would have to show how you

         25  are going to acquire that amount of acreage. And
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          2  then you get into all those ricochets that you were

          3  talking about in your testimony, you're going to

          4  skew the market. You're going to do this. You're

          5  going to do that. But this, you know, provides a

          6  template for us to work, and over the next ten

          7  years, consistent with the regulators, because we're

          8  not changing anything dramatically here. And if we

          9  were going to have a ten-year FAD, it would probably

         10  look something like what my bill says.

         11                 Okay, Counsel wants me to ask this

         12  question.  This is what I'm really trying to do.

         13  I've got my perspective, I've got my vantage point,

         14  I've got my marching orders, I've got the people's

         15  will and I'm trying to -- everybody wants to include

         16  what you want and what I want. You've got to deal

         17  with the regulators, you've got to deal with finite

         18  bits of time. You don't want to step on toes and I

         19  can appreciate that, and you're a better

         20  commissioner for it.

         21                 But part of what we do here is, you

         22  know, we're not essentially tied down by regulators

         23  who can safely put the City on a course of

         24  maximizing the chances to get permanent filtration

         25  avoidance by doing this. And I firmly believe that
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          2  this is what we need to do to create the best chance

          3  for us to get permanent filtration avoidance.

          4                 So, our disagreement, to the extent

          5  that we have one, it is a matter of time scales and

          6  prospective but ultimately towards the same goal.

          7                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Just to say that

          8  I think that happily you and I really do share the

          9  same vision of where we want to go, and we usually,

         10  at least heretofore have ended very close, if not

         11  exactly the same space.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         13                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: So, we may not

         14  get there this afternoon, but it is certainly my

         15  hopes that we will in our discussions around this

         16  issue.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         18  you.

         19                 We'll just kind of state for the

         20  record that my conversation with the EPA, the EPA's

         21  statements here before this Committee, they're on

         22  record as saying that the best way to preserve the

         23  FAD is through a robust land acquisition program.

         24  That is the best way to ensure future water quality.

         25                 So, putting this on the record just
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          2  for the purpose of saying that our statements, and

          3  like the thrust in this bill is completely

          4  consistent with that which the prime regulator in

          5  this case has asserted on the record many times.

          6                 Former DEP Commissioner Chris Ward

          7  previously testified that he expected and hoped to

          8  secure a filtration avoidance for the Cat/Del System

          9  for at least the next 40 years; do you share that

         10  goal?

         11                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I do share that

         12  goal.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, great.

         14                 DEP stated at the April 4th, 2006 EPA

         15  hearing regarding the FAD that it would cost between

         16  five- and ten-billion dollars to construct the

         17  filtration plant for the Cat/Del System. Is that

         18  figure basically correct?

         19                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I think that

         20  we're finding the construction costs are difficult

         21  to project at this point. But I think that probably

         22  continues to be an accurate projection. I should

         23  only hope it would stay at that level.

         24                 I think the other very serious issue

         25  about a filtration plant would be the operating
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          2  cost.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          4                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: It could be very

          5  burdensome.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, we'll get

          7  to that.

          8                 The DEP also stated that the annual

          9  operation and maintenance cost for a filtration

         10  plant for Cat/Del would be approximately $100

         11  million per year; does that figure still make sense?

         12                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Yes. Very

         13  dependent on energy costs.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         15                 We're joined by Council Member

         16  Domenic Recchia. It's a pleasure to have you here.

         17  And also Council Member Lanza and Council Member

         18  White, as well.

         19                 What would be the annual debt service

         20  for a filtration plant for the Catskill system, and

         21  any sense of what the debt service would be?

         22                 Anybody got a calculator?

         23                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I don't have it

         24  in my head, and I'm not sure we have brought the

         25  person who would be able to answer that question.
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          2                 Maybe submit that one and we'll get

          3  back to you within the next day or so?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Fine.

          5                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Or you may have

          6  the answer right there.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I don't.

          8                 We have been advised it would be in

          9  the order of hundreds of millions of debt service?

         10                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: It would be a

         11  lot.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, fine.

         13                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I don't want to

         14  guess because the numbers are big, but we'll be

         15  happy to get back to you and then your staff and

         16  ours can talk.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: How much has the

         18  DEP spent on land acquisition in the watershed over

         19  the last ten years?

         20                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I'm going to ask

         21  Dave Tobias to respond to that, please. Why don't

         22  you just come up and pull up a chair.

         23                 MR. TOBIAS: Was the question directed

         24  at Catskill Delaware only?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. How much
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          2  has DEP spent on land -- if you have it for both,

          3  fine, but we're focusing on Cat/Del.

          4                 MR. TOBIAS: The total to date, and it

          5  does change by the week, is $202 million to date for

          6  Cat/Del and 38 million for Croton System.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you.

          8                 So, even if that figure, because we

          9  talked about some finances here, so even if the

         10  figure, you know, doubled for land purchase, that we

         11  will purchase over the next year, wouldn't that cost

         12  still be significantly cheaper than the ten-year

         13  operation and maintenance cost in debt service for a

         14  filtration plant for the Catskill Delaware water

         15  supply. I'm trying to make a case.

         16                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Certainly that

         17  always has been and continues to be our working

         18  assumption, this is the more cost effective way to

         19  continue water quality.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. We agree.

         21                 Thank you. What is DEP's projected

         22  water increases for the next three fiscal years?

         23                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I don't know if

         24  we formally project that. But I do know that for the

         25  next year, we are projecting an increase similar to

                                                            50

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  this year's increase, which is over nine percent, as

          3  you I know --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. Okay.

          5                 So, if the City were to filter the

          6  Cat/Del System, what impact would that have on water

          7  rates in the short term? What impact would it have

          8  on water rates within the first ten years of the

          9  project?

         10                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Mr. Chairman, I

         11  apologize, I did not bring one of our budget people

         12  with us today, so I'm going to have to respond to

         13  you in the next day or so.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That would be

         15  fine. Fine.

         16                 So, we're asking what would be the

         17  impact on rates in the short term, the first ten

         18  years of the project, and the impact beyond that.

         19  I'm trying to make the case how onerous it would be

         20  to have to filter.

         21                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: And we agree with

         22  you totally.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         24  you.

         25                 How much land does the City currently
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          2  control in the Catskill/Delaware watershed?

          3                 MR. TOBIAS: Over the last ten years

          4  we have acquired 72,500 acres, give or take, in the

          5  Cat/Del. And we have an additional -- before the

          6  start of the program we had 36,000 acres in land,

          7  and 26,000 acres under water, reservoirs.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: How much of this

          9  land that you just mentioned does the City own

         10  outright, and how much does it control by easement?

         11                 MR. TOBIAS: All of the 36,000, all of

         12  the pre-Emily land of course is owned in fee, and of

         13  the 72,500, approximately 11,500, 11,000 are under

         14  easement right now to the City, and another 13,800

         15  or so are in farm easements to the Watershed Ag

         16  Council funded by the City.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         18                 And what percentage of the overall

         19  watershed does this amount of land amount to?

         20                 MR. TOBIAS: For the Cat/Del we

         21  started the program with about three and a half

         22  percent of the watershed owned by the City, not

         23  including, of course, statelands.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         25                 MR. TOBIAS: We have since been able
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          2  to acquire and protect about seven percent in

          3  addition to the ten and a half percent of --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That we control,

          5  the City?

          6                 MR. TOBIAS: That we own in fee or

          7  under easement.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          9                 MR. TOBIAS: So, over ten percent is

         10  under City Control of some sort, and the majority of

         11  that in fee simple.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. And of

         13  course, other entities, other state and other I

         14  guess levels of government also control. So, the

         15  total percentage of, let us say, protected lands,

         16  including holdings by the State, are equal to what

         17  percent?

         18                 MR. TOBIAS: We estimate that overall

         19  in the Cat/Del roughly 30 percent of the lands --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thirty percent.

         21                 MR. TOBIAS: -- Are protected by

         22  either the City or the State or other local land

         23  trusts or municipalities.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Okay.

         25                 And that's when you add together,
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          2  that's everything, the State, private land trusts,

          3  whatever, is 30 percent, okay.

          4                 How does this compare to the

          5  percentage of watershed land protected for, if you

          6  know, for San Francisco's municipal supply, which is

          7  another major unfiltered system, or Portland or

          8  Seattle or Boston? Do you have any numbers on those?

          9                 MR. TOBIAS: I have my memory on that

         10  because we did some research for years --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         12                 MR. TOBIAS: And I believe that (a)

         13  our watershed is much bigger than any of those, in

         14  fact, I think all of them put together, but on a

         15  percentage basis we are protecting fewer acres than

         16  most of those five major systems you mentioned.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         18                 MR. TOBIAS: Some of those are

         19  protected at the 100 percent level.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         21                 MR. TOBIAS: Boston is the only one

         22  that is sort of in our neighborhood at I think

         23  somewhere in the neighborhood of 50 to 60 percent

         24  protected.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you.
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 EPA stated that land ownership is the

          4  best means of protecting water quality, close quote.

          5  Do you agree with that statement?

          6                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          8                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Ownership or --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Right.

         10  Control, yes.

         11                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD:-- Similar

         12  protection, yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you for

         14  the clarification on that.

         15                 In addition, the EPA recently

         16  testified at our April 4th hearing on FAD that the

         17  issue of turbidity is one the EPA will be looking

         18  at, and it could be a challenge for the City.

         19                 Do you agree with the EPA that

         20  turbidity poses a challenge for the City?

         21                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Yes, I do.

         22                 Turbidity has, since it was built,

         23  been an ongoing issue in the Cat/Del system, and

         24  that continues.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you.
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          2                 The EPA further stated that land

          3  acquisition could help control turbidity in a number

          4  of ways, close quote. And agreed that it, quote,

          5  definitely is, close quote, an important component

          6  of dealing with turbidity. Do you agree with that

          7  statement?

          8                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I do agree with

          9  that statement. Interestingly, we have been doing a

         10  fair amount of research on the sources of turbidity,

         11  and I think that it is much more complex than we had

         12  heretofore thought in terms of its source. And one

         13  very significant source is the stream beds

         14  themselves in the area, but I think there is no

         15  question that development, that we see development,

         16  unless it's done with great care and exacerbating

         17  our exposure to turbidity.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         19                 The EPA also stated that the land

         20  acquisition program has many other values that are

         21  not directly associated with turbidity but do have a

         22  lot to do with work quality. So, it's an enormously

         23  important program, even independent of the turbidity

         24  issue? That's a quote from EPA. Do you agree with

         25  that quote from the EPA?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Thank you.

          4  I'll probably have some final questions but before I

          5  do that, I want to recognize Council Member White

          6  who has some questions.

          7                 Council Member White.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Thank you very

          9  much, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 What I would like to get some

         11  responses to is, is our understanding that pursuant

         12  to the nitrogen agreement regarding the Long Island

         13  Sound, signed by the City and State earlier this

         14  year, the Department is required to conduct further

         15  studies on Jamaica Bay and submit by October '06 a

         16  comprehensive plan to achieve water quality

         17  standards for the Bay. Where do we stand on that?

         18                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I'm sorry, what

         19  was the date again?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: October '06.

         21                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Yes, we are on

         22  track to do that. That requirement, however, is very

         23  specifically focused on our wastewater treatment

         24  plants, and what we are going to do to reduce

         25  nitrogen from those plants, I believe. And we have
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          2  tried to structure the work that we've been doing on

          3  the Jamaica Bay Watershed Bill, so that each of

          4  these pieces of work that we're doing, having to do

          5  with the nitrogen agreement that we have to

          6  finalize, we just did the one on Long Island Sound,

          7  now we have the one on Jamaica coming up.

          8                 We also have to do a plan to deal

          9  with combined sewer overflows which also contribute

         10  to problems in Jamaica Bay, and then we have this

         11  plan, and we're trying to do them so that they all

         12  inform each other as we do the different pieces of

         13  research and analysis that goes with each one.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay. In

         15  addition to the 2.7 million civil penalty, the City

         16  has agreed to provide 5.3 million to perform

         17  environmental benefit projects that will support the

         18  restoration of waters in and around New York City.

         19                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Yes, that's

         20  correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay.

         22                 What measures are you required to

         23  implement for the Jamaica Bay pursuant to the DEC

         24  consent order regarding combined sewer overflows?

         25                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I'm going to ask
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          2  our counsel, Mark Hoffer, to answer that, in the

          3  interest of accuracy.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay.

          5                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: And I've asked

          6  Angela Lacotta to come up also, the Deputy

          7  Commissioner for Environmental Planning and

          8  Analysis.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If I could,

         10  Commissioner, I'd just like to take this opportunity

         11  just to share with you all the wonderful comments

         12  I've gotten regarding Ms. LaCotta and her work with

         13  the advisory committee. I'm in constant touch with

         14  the folks who are working on it, and so I just

         15  wanted to congratulate you and thank you for your

         16  efforts, and let you know, Commissioner, all the

         17  great feedback that I'm getting on Angela and all of

         18  your team who are so committed to this. Thank you.

         19                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I appreciate

         20  that. Thank you.

         21                 MR. HOFFER: I'll try to answer it.

         22  Clearly one of the things we're doing to address

         23  CSOs in Jamaica Bay and elsewhere is implement

         24  projects pursuant to a CSO consent order that we

         25  have with the State to try to remediate the impacts
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          2  of CSOs on the various tributaries to the bay. And

          3  we're in the midst of doing that as we speak, such

          4  as the Paerdagat Basin Project that I know you and

          5  the Chairman are very familiar with. That's one

          6  technology that we're using, which is the

          7  construction of large scale storage tanks to capture

          8  and hold the storm surge until the storm subsides,

          9  and treat the storm flow at the sewage treatment

         10  plants rather than releasing the combined flow-in as

         11  a CSO event.

         12                 We're going to be pursuing that at a

         13  number of locations around Jamaica Bay, not

         14  necessarily tanks but strategies to address or

         15  immediate the impact of CSOs and there is a program

         16  for that laid out in the CSO consent order with the

         17  State, I know, Mr. Chairman, you're very, very

         18  familiar with.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay. Do you

         20  foresee the nitrogen plan or the CSO consent order

         21  limiting the Jamaica Bay Watershed Protection Plan

         22  in any way?

         23                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I think, as I

         24  said, that they are interrelated and we're trying to

         25  develop them so that they inform each other. But we
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          2  think they compliment each other.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Thank you,

          6  Council member.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, I think I

          8  have one more question regarding the watershed bill,

          9  and then we can jump over to Jamaica Bay.

         10                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Do you think I

         11  can answer it, or do we have to switch people?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: On, no, no. I

         13  think we're fine.

         14                 At the April 4th, 2006 Committee

         15  hearing on the FAD, former DEP Deputy Commissioner

         16  Mike Principe stated that the DEP, quote, is in the

         17  process of creating a series of modern flexible

         18  recreational use regulations to replace outmoded

         19  rules that dealt solely with fishing and boating,

         20  close quote. And that DEP, quote, hopes to have

         21  those out and completed by the end of this year,

         22  close quote.

         23                 What recreational uses do you expect

         24  these upcoming regulations to permit?

         25                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: We are looking at
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          2  adding hunting for small game and turkey and bear,

          3  and the staff has been looking at our holdings

          4  across the counties and trying to assess which ones

          5  which would be appropriate for this.

          6                 As you know, a very significant

          7  amount of our land is open for deer hunting, and we

          8  would like to open up a good deal of the land for

          9  these other types of hunting for the reasons that we

         10  alluded to, we think that not only are they a source

         11  of recreation for people who live in the area and a

         12  way for us to have been, have more benefit from

         13  having us hold the watershed land, but we think

         14  there also would be a positive contributor to

         15  tourism.

         16                 So, we are eager to do that. However,

         17  because the program has been so successful in terms

         18  of water quality, and while it was very clear that

         19  the overpopulation of deer made deer hunting produce

         20  a net positive water quality effect, we have felt

         21  more cautious about the balance in having what may

         22  be a large number of people for a much longer season

         23  come on to do hunting for a much wider variety of

         24  species.

         25                 So, in looking at that carefully, we
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          2  have said that we would like to do a pilot this year

          3  and then roll out a much more extensive program next

          4  year. That is still our intent and we are still

          5  working on exactly how we would do that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Thank you.

          7  Thank you.

          8                 Is the DEP still on track for

          9  completing the regulations by the end of 2006? Or

         10  did you just answer that?

         11                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: We certainly hope

         12  so, yes. Unless we encounter unforeseen

         13  difficulties.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Can I ask a

         16  question on that?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Council Member

         18  Vallone has a question on that.

         19                 Council Member Vallone.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thanks. I

         21  wasn't going to ask any questions until hunting came

         22  up. So, we have all this new recreational land, and

         23  this is a use that we come up with, hunting? Once

         24  you allow hunting, aren't you pretty much

         25  eliminating some other uses that you could use the
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          2  land for?

          3                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, according

          4  to the other watersheds, the other unfiltered

          5  watersheds into the State, the answer to that is --

          6  I don't know what you specifically have in mind, but

          7  generally, no. I think the State and their parks and

          8  the other watersheds where they allow a variety, and

          9  it varies a lot from watershed to watershed, they do

         10  allow a variety of uses, find that there is ample

         11  land to allow for a lot of hiking. We do not allow

         12  camping, which is typical of unfiltered watersheds,

         13  and that what happens typically is that hikers are

         14  not in the areas where hunters are going to be

         15  because game is not sitting around on the trail,

         16  they tend to be off, away from the trail, and away

         17  where the typical use is.

         18                 We have been very concerned about the

         19  possibility of one acting to the detriment of the

         20  other, but our research to date has indicated that

         21  that probably won't be the case.

         22                 The other very, really the most

         23  significant use of the watershed is fishing. We

         24  allow a great deal of fishing. We do that very

         25  carefully. People have to have their boats
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          2  steam-cleaned by us. If they take them off of the

          3  watershed property they will have to be cleaned

          4  again before they can touch the reservoir and that's

          5  gone on for a very long time, and we've been very

          6  successful, both in terms of protecting water

          7  quality, and as I said, it's overwhelmingly the use

          8  that most people who come on to watershed property

          9  like to enjoy in terms of recreation.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Yes, I can

         11  think of a few reasons why hikers aren't in areas

         12  where hunters are.

         13                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Exactly. Good

         14  judgment, among other things.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Opposite and

         16  different than with what you came up with, but I

         17  just, I'm no expert in this, it just came up for the

         18  first time. I'm an avid anti-hunter and I just want

         19  to put my plug in for the animals. If there's any

         20  way you can come up with uses, hiking, fishing,

         21  things like that, that's what I would recommend, as

         22  opposed to increasing hunting opportunities.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         25  Council Member Vallone.
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          2                 We are also joined by Council Member

          3  Melissa Mark-Viverito. A pleasure having you here.

          4                 One last question on the recreational

          5  uses. With whom are you having discussions with in

          6  the Upstate communities, regarding how this will all

          7  work? What kind of consultation are you doing?

          8                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: There are

          9  obviously a variety of actors. One of the groups we

         10  always talk to is Catskill Watershed Corporation,

         11  the Coalition of Watershed Towns. We've had on and

         12  off discussions with them over the period.

         13                 I'm not going to be very good at the

         14  names, Bill, help me out.

         15                 Volunteers from the audience.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Mark can make

         17  the statement.

         18                 MR. HOFFER: There are a variety of

         19  stakeholders, and the Commissioner is absolutely

         20  right, we have consultations on a bunch of levels

         21  with the State, obviously fairly frequently with the

         22  Watershed Council which represents a variety of

         23  groups, with the West of Hudson Sporting Advisory

         24  Committee, which is a local entity that we talk with

         25  quite frequently about recreational use. Sometimes
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          2  we agree with them, sometimes we don't, but we have

          3  a fair amount of consultation with them.

          4                 And indeed, as the regulations you

          5  cite to were drafted, they were drafted based on

          6  consultation and hearings that we held in the

          7  watershed.

          8                 So, I can assure you that there was a

          9  good deal of conversations going on and that will be

         10  going forward.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         12                 Okay, with regard to Intro. 376,

         13  which talks about Jamaica Bay, you don't mention

         14  that the draft Jamaica Bay Watershed Protection

         15  Plant in your testimony. Do you have any comments

         16  regarding that portion of Intro. 376, and regarding

         17  the date by which the plan, I guess the draft plan,

         18  needs to be submitted?

         19                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: No, we don't?

         20  Okay, we're okay with that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         22                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: We actually

         23  think, as you know, from our conversations, Mr.

         24  Chairman, the request for an extension which we

         25  appreciate your looking at very much --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

          3                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: There's really a

          4  marked success on this project.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          6                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: There's been a

          7  lot of participation as it has turned out to be a

          8  very valuable undertaking and we're very excited

          9  about seeing it through to as hopeful a completion

         10  as possible.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Regarding

         12  Jamaica Bay, I just want to let you know

         13  Commissioner that your statements at the bill

         14  signing for the bill, how excited you were about it,

         15  and, you know, it's really resonated with the

         16  Greater Jamaica Bay interested community. They're

         17  very happy with your full embrace of this. Angela

         18  has been great and other folks, and so I just want

         19  to thank you in a very public way for your being so

         20  supportive of the great work that's getting done on

         21  Jamaica Bay.

         22                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, I hope you

         23  won't quote this back to me, but as you know when

         24  you were passing the bill I was very apprehensive

         25  about the undertaking, whether we would really be
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          2  able to get our arms around it, because there were

          3  so many actors over which we really had no control.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          5                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: But I think it's

          6  been a terrific bill and the process has really been

          7  very helpful.

          8                 So, thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I hope that

         10  in the future the Commissioner will be making the

         11  same remarks about Intro. 375. At first I was

         12  apprehensive, you know, there's a tough world out

         13  there, you know, Hoffer is telling me this and that

         14  or whatever, and so maybe this all bodes well for

         15  the future.

         16                 Thank you very much, Commissioner.

         17  It's been a real pleasure to have you here today. We

         18  are really lucky to have you as our Commissioner,

         19  and the good team that you've put on the ground is

         20  really, really terrific and we thank you.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, our next

         24  panel, Suzanne Mattei, from the Sierra Club, and Irv

         25  Flynn from Environmental Advocates.
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          2                 We know that these folks have time

          3  commitments, so we're trying to accommodate them.

          4                 Oh, and Commissioner, I just talked

          5  to Stan Michels last night. He sends his regards. He

          6  wanted to be here today to greet you personally, but

          7  he sends his regards. Take care, Commissioner.

          8                 Okay, Donna will swear you in and

          9  then you can proceed with your testimony.

         10                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         11  right hand.

         12                 In the testimony that you're about to

         13  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         14  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         15                 MS. MATTEI: I do.

         16                 MR. FLINN: I do.

         17                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, well, I'm

         19  holding Suzanne's testimony in my hand, maybe

         20  Suzanne should go first. How about that.

         21                 MS. MATTEI: Let me stray from the

         22  testimony to respond to some of the comments that

         23  the Commissioner made.

         24                 I don't think that this bill in any

         25  way is inconsistent with the Memorandum of
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          2  Understanding with the filtration avoidance decree.

          3  You really are setting a goal. It is just a goal.

          4  The reality is that you need a measuring stick, and

          5  money is not a good enough measuring stick to how

          6  well we're doing in the watershed.

          7                 Throughout the statute you talk about

          8  how that goal can be achieved. Nowhere do you say it

          9  should be achieved through eminent domain. In fact,

         10  you're really saying the opposite in this bill. You

         11  refer to willing seller, willing buyer, and not

         12  doing things in that way.

         13                 The concern that the Commissioner

         14  raised about whether people would suddenly raise

         15  their prices because the City was trying to achieve

         16  a goal in watershed acreage, I don't find that

         17  persuasive, and even if that did become a problem,

         18  your bill, Section 24-368(b)(2) on page nine of the

         19  bill, you're requiring the agency to come back to

         20  the Council every couple years to talk about how

         21  they're doing, and if any kind of problem like that

         22  were starting to develop, one would be able to red

         23  flag it and deal with it in that way. So, I don't

         24  see that as an overwhelming issue or problem.

         25                 I think the goal that you're seeking
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          2  to achieve is actually quite conservative.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I thought so

          4  too.

          5                 MS. MATTEI: Yes, I think the agency

          6  has developed a lot of contacts in the watershed, a

          7  tremendous amount of knowledge and expertise in land

          8  purchasing in the watershed over the past several

          9  years, so that going into this next decade, it

         10  really should be able to hit the ground running.

         11                 In fact, we would recommend, and I

         12  want to clarify this in my testimony, because I

         13  think I wasn't clear enough, the that plan should

         14  actually upload the land acquisition requirements.

         15  We'd rather see 10,000 acres per year during the

         16  first seven years, during the first seven years --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What was that

         18  again?

         19                 MS. MATTEI: We'd rather see you

         20  upload the acreage in the earlier years. We'd rather

         21  see an accelerated goal of 10,000 acres per year in

         22  those first seven years, than achieving the rest in

         23  the last three years.

         24                 In part because we think that land

         25  prices are still likely to continue to go up, so the
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          2  sooner we can get these purchases in the better, and

          3  we're concerned that increased development pressure

          4  in the watershed is a problem. So, we think that the

          5  agency should be able to do better than it did

          6  during this first stage of watershed acquisition,

          7  and we think that higher goals could be achieved.

          8                 You don't necessarily have to state

          9  them in this bill, but we think that they could be

         10  achieved and we think that they should be achieved.

         11                 So, we welcome the inclusion of the

         12  Croton Watershed in this proposed local law. We

         13  think that that's absolutely critical. Whether you

         14  have filtration avoidance or not, watershed

         15  protection is absolutely crucial. Filtration is not

         16  a panacea, and there are many pollutants that aren't

         17  captured by a filtration system, so you really want

         18  to have the best system possible in place.

         19                 And finally, we very strongly agree

         20  with the importance of City Council oversight. We

         21  don't ever want this to slip onto the back burner.

         22  This is the drinking water supply for actually about

         23  10 million people total, and we don't ever want to

         24  see this not be the squeaky wheel. So, requiring the

         25  agency to come back and report to the Council
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          2  repeatedly, regular intervals over time helps to

          3  keep the squeaky wheel that doesn't get lost in the

          4  shuffle of all of the terrorism and every other

          5  major -- everything in this City is a priority, but

          6  this really needs to be maintained as a priority.

          7                 That concludes my testimony. I would

          8  like to take just a second because Council Member

          9  Lanza is here, to express the appreciation of our

         10  volunteer leaders of the Sierra Club on Staten

         11  Island for standing up the way that you did at a

         12  very contentious hearing and expressing your views.

         13  We feel very strongly that any Council member should

         14  be able to express their views as passionately as

         15  they want on behalf of their constituents at any

         16  public hearing and that the behavior that occurred

         17  was unacceptable, and we appreciate your gutsiness

         18  on this issue.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I would ask

         20  Council Member Lanza to say a few words.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Well, thank

         22  you, Chairman. As you know, that's what we do in the

         23  City Council. It really is a wonderful local body

         24  and we do our best to stand up for the best

         25  interests of the people we represent and I'm proud
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          2  to do that every chance I get. And I work with very

          3  fine colleagues, like the Chairman, and we believe

          4  passionately in these things we stand for,

          5  especially when it comes to our environment, and

          6  we're going to continue to do that, and thank you

          7  for the work you do. We appreciate it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. We

          9  are a bipartisan environmental action. That's our

         10  credo. Thank you, Council member.

         11                 Thank you, Suzanne.

         12                 Yes, Mr. Flinn. Mr. Flinn, a pleasure

         13  to have you.

         14                 MR. FLINN: Thank you, Chairman. I

         15  appreciate so much the opportunity to speak here

         16  with you and the other Council members.

         17                 I would like to say Environmental

         18  Advocates, whom I'm the president of, is the leading

         19  organization of statewide membership that focuses

         20  its efforts while protecting the environment of our

         21  State by advocating for the adoption, implementation

         22  and sound policy, and we feel that the policy in

         23  your Intro. 375 is exactly that, it's very sound

         24  policy.

         25                 I'd also like to align myself with

                                                            75

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  the comments Suzanne has made with respect to Intro.

          3  375. She is absolutely right on in every respect.

          4  The reasons we favor Intro. 375 are largely stated,

          5  and very well stated, we feel, in the bill itself,

          6  in the declaration of legislative findings and

          7  intent.

          8                 I just want to point out just a few

          9  things, we note particularly. As Suzanne mentioned,

         10  the 75,000 acres is a goal. We think that is

         11  important that it be a goal, that we set a goal, and

         12  also that it be just a goal. We think it is very

         13  important that it be willing buyer, willing seller.

         14  This is not eminent domain. This is not forcing

         15  people to sell.

         16                 We do not feel that a goal on a

         17  willing buyer, willing seller scheme is inconsistent

         18  with setting priorities, as to what properties are a

         19  more critical purchase and therefore may require an

         20  emphasis. And if that's the reason why a goal isn't

         21  achieved because the best lands had been

         22  successfully acquired.

         23                 I think that your committee and the

         24  Council would be very willing to consider that as a

         25  reason.
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          2                 So, we're not troubled by a stated

          3  goal of 75,000 acres. It's consistent with the

          4  practice over the past ten years, and I also

          5  reinforce Sierra Club's point that frontloading the

          6  acquisition program would make every sense.

          7                 I also note that the bill emphasizes

          8  the cost effectiveness of conservation easements. As

          9  a director of two land trusts in Hudson River Valley

         10  I'm very acutely aware, one, that land costs are

         11  going up rapidly, and if there is to be a successful

         12  acquisition program, that we'll support for that, it

         13  should be implemented as rapidly as possible,

         14  because otherwise the remaining supply of acreage

         15  will be much, much more expensive to acquire.

         16                 And secondly, that protection through

         17  conservation easements is an extremely efficient

         18  method of protection and since the land trusts are

         19  involved with, do regularly inspect the land that's

         20  subject to the conservation easements, I would tend

         21  to disagree with the Commissioner on that being a

         22  burdensome thing. It is not that burdensome. It has

         23  to be done, but it's not that burdensome.

         24                 I would applaud the Commissioner for

         25  her very thoughtful approach to increased
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          2  recreation. There should be increased recreational

          3  opportunities that's consistent with the protection

          4  of the watershed. And we also support very much the

          5  continuing acquisition program in the Croton

          6  watershed. Filtration systems can and have failed.

          7  So, I think that we should not expect that even

          8  Croton, that simply reliance on the filtration is

          9  the practical approach.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Flinn. It's great to have you environmental

         13  advocates, and Suzanne and the Sierra Club behind us

         14  during this initiative, and we appreciate the

         15  important advocacy that both of you do here

         16  individually and your organizations collectively to

         17  help this and your other initiatives. So, thank you

         18  so much for being here today and we certainly

         19  appreciate your input. And we'll seriously consider

         20  the timing or the phasing of the land purchases, so

         21  we appreciate that. That's an important thing that

         22  we'll consider.

         23                 Thank you. Thank you, again.

         24                 MR. FLINN: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Next panel,
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          2  Cathleen Breen of NYPIRG, and Eric Goldstein of

          3  NRDC. Cathleen Breen of NYPIRG and Eric Goldstein of

          4  NRDC.

          5                 Eric, I know being the constant

          6  gentleman that you are, you're going to --

          7                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Ladies first.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Ladies first.

          9  Okay.

         10                 Donna will give the oath. Thank you

         11  both very much for being here.

         12                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         13  right hand.

         14                 In the testimony that you're about to

         15  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         16  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         17                 MS. BREEN: I do.

         18                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: I do.

         19                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: I do.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you so

         21  much.

         22                 MS. BREEN: I do want to point out,

         23  though, although I am Cathleen Breen, the Watershed

         24  Protection Coordinator of the New York Public

         25  Interest Research Group, from NYPIRG, I am here
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          2  today representing the Coalition, the Clean Drinking

          3  Water Coalition, which is not only NYPIRG, but also

          4  Riverkeeper, and the Cat/Del Center for Conservation

          5  Development, the three environment organizations

          6  that are the signatories of the watershed agreement.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          8                 MS. BREEN: So, I just wanted to have

          9  that on the record.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         11                 MS. BREEN: Nevertheless, the Clean

         12  Drinking Water Coalition appreciates this

         13  opportunity to comment today on proposed

         14  legislation, Intro. 375. And first we'd like to

         15  thank you, Chairman Gennaro, and your staff, for

         16  heeding our concerns last year. Your willingness to

         17  listen to the advocates who work on monitoring

         18  implementation and enforcement of the City's

         19  watershed protection programs designated in the

         20  watershed agreement and the Filtration Avoidance

         21  Determination, FAD, speaks to your commitment to

         22  protect the drinking water supply for more than 9

         23  million New Yorkers, and we commend you.

         24                 As you know, the landmark watershed

         25  agreement laid out a comprehensive plan to protect
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          2  the integrity of New York City's water supply, while

          3  fostering environmentally sound economic growth in

          4  the watershed, and it's seen as a model across the

          5  country and around the world.

          6                 In light of the watershed agreement,

          7  EPA granted a five-year conditional FAD in 1997 and

          8  again in 2002, thereby avoiding the catastrophic

          9  economic expense of both constructing a water

         10  filtration plant, which estimates have run from 5 -

         11  or 6 - to $10 billion, and annual operating costs in

         12  the hundreds of millions, possibly a million a day.

         13                 At the heart of the agreement is the

         14  land acquisition program, which prioritizes the land

         15  throughout the nearly 2,000 square mile watershed

         16  for acquisition, as we said today, by either fee

         17  simple ownership, or conservation easements on a

         18  willing seller, willing buyer/willing seller basis,

         19  and it works with Upstate communities who are the

         20  stewards of New York City's drinking water

         21  reservoirs and we think that's key to protecting

         22  these natural resources.

         23                 As you know, our coalition fully

         24  supports the continuing robust land acquisition as

         25  is undertaken in Intro. 375, and we're also working
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          2  to ensure that the upcoming FAD, which EPA is

          3  expected to grant in 2007, will contain a vigorous

          4  land acquisition program as well.

          5                 Unfortunately, far too much land

          6  remains vulnerable to unscrupulous development in

          7  the watershed, especially in the Catskills. We

          8  believe that every effort should be made to increase

          9  the City's land-holdings in the region, while

         10  working with the local communities to foster main

         11  street revitalization, as was envisioned in the MOA.

         12  Dedicating funds, and increasing and formalizing

         13  resolicitation efforts is critical to this goal as

         14  is working with land trusts who may have greater

         15  opportunity in the watershed to negotiate land

         16  purchases and especially conservation easements.

         17                 Our Coalition supports Intro. 375's

         18  requirement that DEP illuminates on the progress of

         19  land acquisition efforts, and believes it has the

         20  potential to foster greater communication between

         21  stake holders and DEP resulting in an effective

         22  program.

         23                 And, again, one of the things about

         24  Intro. 375 that it clearly states, not using eminent

         25  domain, and it stresses purchasing land in the
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          2  priority areas.

          3                 We're also pleased to see that Intro.

          4  375 also addresses a land acquisition issue that we

          5  believe is critical to the entire system, yet often

          6  overlooked. Again, acquiring land in the Croton

          7  watershed.

          8                 With the upcoming filtration of the

          9  Croton water supply, it's important to hold the City

         10  accountable to its commitment to continuing a

         11  multi-barrier approach, including land acquisition.

         12                 Filtration, as was said earlier,

         13  filtration does not guarantee public safety, as

         14  evidenced by waterborne disease outbreak in

         15  Milwaukee in '93, as was stated before this

         16  Committee many times before.

         17                 Development pressure in the Croton

         18  and the entire east of Hudson is tremendous, and the

         19  City must step up efforts there.

         20                 Your requirements that the City

         21  report regularly on their progress will allow for

         22  greater public scrutiny and meaningful input.

         23                 As for recreational use, recreational

         24  use of City-owned land continues to be a concern to

         25  stakeholders.
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          2                 Intro 375 would require land

          3  management plans for newly acquired lands which we

          4  support.

          5                 In addition to the new lands, our

          6  Coalition will continue to press the City to engage

          7  in serious good faith efforts to work out a sensible

          8  long-term plan that allows for expanded recreational

          9  opportunities on current watershed land is

         10  appropriate.

         11                 We found that recreationists are

         12  normally good stewards of the land and act as

         13  additional watchdogs on watershed lands.

         14                 And according to Intro. 375, the

         15  Council seeks to better fulfill its responsibility

         16  to New York City water consumers and ratepayers by

         17  reviewing DEP's long-term watershed protection plan.

         18                 We thank the Council for undertaking

         19  this review and believe that in conjunction with

         20  your ongoing budget oversight authority, the Council

         21  is well-positioned to ensure that New Yorkers

         22  continue to receive high quality drinking water at

         23  reasonable rates.

         24                 Finally, we thank the Council for the

         25  opportunity to testify today and look forward to
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          2  continue working with you on our mutual goal of

          3  protecting the drinking water of millions of New

          4  Yorkers.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

          7  Cathleen. And I thank all the Clean Water Coalition

          8  -- Clean Drinking Water Coalition. Thank you.

          9                 Eric.

         10                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Thank you very much,

         11  Mr. Chairman. And congratulations to you and your

         12  staff for introducing this very important bill. We

         13  believe it's one of the most important bills

         14  introduced on drinking water in at least the last

         15  two decades in this Council.

         16                 NRDC strongly supports all four major

         17  provisions of this bill. We think that they are all

         18  important, whether we're talking about setting a

         19  ten-year goal for protecting the Catskill and

         20  Delaware System, whether we are talking about

         21  increasing recreational opportunities for watershed

         22  residents, whether we're talking about safeguarding

         23  the Croton supply, despite the ongoing construction

         24  of a filtration plant, or whether we're talking

         25  about expanding the Council's role and review of the
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          2  City's draft FAD document. All of these are

          3  important, and all of these are very worthwhile

          4  activities for you to be undertaking.

          5                 I'd like to ask that NRDC's statement

          6  be entered into the record, and I'll try to briefly

          7  make a couple of key points, although we will try

          8  not to repeat ourselves and we embrace the testimony

          9  of the three previous environmental colleagues and

         10  groups that have testified.

         11                 This legislation is supported by the

         12  environmental community. The legislation is

         13  supported by independent water supply experts around

         14  the nation, and the legislation even enjoys

         15  considerable report among enlightened watershed

         16  residents, both east and west of Hudson, and I think

         17  you will hear some of that today and in the days and

         18  weeks to come.

         19                 I'd just like to respond to several

         20  of the objections raised by Commissioner Lloyd to

         21  Section 368 dealing with the ten-year goal. One

         22  argument that DEP made today was that this goal was

         23  inconsistent with the MOA. But the MOA deals with

         24  1997 to 2007 requirements, this bill follows the MOA

         25  criteria for natural features for priority lands, it
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          2  follows the MOA solicitation targets. I've read this

          3  bill very carefully, as well as the MOA many times,

          4  and we see no conflict between what the MOA provided

          5  for in 1997 to 2007 and what this bill provides for

          6  the following ten years. It's consistent with the

          7  objective and intentions of that provision.

          8                 A second argument that was raised

          9  today was that this is somehow inconsistent with the

         10  willing buyer/willing seller concept in the MOA.

         11  This is a mysterious allegation to us because this

         12  section establishes a goal for City policy for the

         13  next decade. It's a goal. It's a reasonable goal.

         14  It's a goal that would continue the City's current

         15  case of acquisition. It doesn't provide sanctions,

         16  it doesn't provide penalties. It's a provision

         17  designed to simply establish that as a matter of

         18  City policy the ongoing rate of acquisition and

         19  easement will continue on a ten-year time frame,

         20  with willing buyer, with willing seller, with

         21  greater use of easements, with greater cooperation

         22  from land trusts. It's hard to see how this is

         23  inconsistent with either the MOA or the willing

         24  buyer willing seller concept.

         25                 Third, the City felt, seems to feel
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          2  pressured or that this legislation might somehow

          3  pressure it to abandon focus on most valuable

          4  parcels of land. But the legislation deals with that

          5  directly and it calls upon the City to continue its

          6  reliance on the very same land criteria for

          7  selection of lands that are being followed under the

          8  existing program.  There is no need to suggest that

          9  the City would have to abandon its focus on valuable

         10  lands, after all, there are more than 150,000 acres

         11  of the highest category lands identified in the MOA

         12  that still have not been acquired by the City. And

         13  if you throw in the concept of expanded easements,

         14  and the concept of having land trusts seek to

         15  acquire these lands, no reason to think that any

         16  lower priority lands that are invaluable to water

         17  quality would have to be acquired.

         18                 Finally, with respect to the ten-year

         19  time frame and costs in benefits, it used to be that

         20  City water officials would look 20, 30 and 40 years

         21  down the line, and we need the Department of

         22  Environmental protection to do it now. Once

         23  watershed lands are developed, we've lost the

         24  opportunity to protect this water supply for future

         25  generations.
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          2                 If EPA orders filtration in five

          3  years, the City will be in big trouble. Water rates

          4  will skyrocket and DEP will have failed on one of

          5  its cornerstone missions.

          6                 The very purpose of your legislation,

          7  Mr. Chairman, is to ensure that that doesn't happen,

          8  to make sure that long-term watershed planning and a

          9  sensible land acquisition program moves forward over

         10  the next decade.

         11                 Conservation easements are

         12  approximately 60 percent of the costs of acquiring

         13  land and fee simple. And so any carrying costs or

         14  burdens associated with those conservation

         15  easements, and there are some, would be far

         16  outweighed by the savings that would accrue from

         17  spending 60 percent of the fee simple cost.

         18                 The bottom line is that whether we

         19  have long-term filtration avoidance or not, the best

         20  policy is to have long-term watershed protection.

         21                 Reinventing government, the author

         22  said what gets measured gets done. Even if you

         23  really don't care about water quality, which we know

         24  you do and we know DEP does, you'd have good reason

         25  to support this legislation because the bill will
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          2  help assure that the City staves off the unthinkable

          3  costs of Catskill and Delaware filtration at a time

          4  when the City's ten-year capital budget is already

          5  bursting at the seams with nine year, nine percent

          6  water rate increases expected for the coming years.

          7                 The City simply cannot afford to have

          8  filtration ordered in five years or even ten years,

          9  and this legislation will help ensure that that

         10  doesn't happen.

         11                 Last but not least, on the issue of

         12  recreational usages, this is a very important

         13  provision of the bill. This is an area where the

         14  City has fallen off the mark. The provision in your

         15  bill would give the City a push to comply with

         16  existing commitments to allow hiking, hunting and

         17  fishing on the most important City-owned watershed

         18  land. If DEP is really concerned about strengthening

         19  the Upstate/Downstate partnership and we believe

         20  they are, they should move forward to address this

         21  sore point without further delay.

         22                 Your legislation gives that very

         23  important program a well-deserved kick in the pants.

         24  And we appreciate this legislation and we look

         25  forward to working with you to see it signed into
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          2  law.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, both.

          5  I just have a question.

          6                 Eric, in your statement you talked

          7  about, I mentioned 160,000 acres of priority land,

          8  you mentioned 160,000 acres of priority land, what

          9  categories of priority would, you know that's like

         10  the 1A, 1B, what categories would that include?

         11                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: I believe that

         12  includes category 1, 2, 3 but not the fourth

         13  category, which is by far and away the largest

         14  category.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         16                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: But by even then, all

         17  of those categories, and remember those categories

         18  together identify 360,000 acres out of a million

         19  acres or so in the watershed, so all of those

         20  category lands have some water quality connection to

         21  them.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         23                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: But certainly if

         24  you're just looking in the top three categories

         25  you've got over 150,000 acres that are still
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          2  available. And then, again, that doesn't account for

          3  all other lands for which conservation easements

          4  could be secured.

          5                 There are many people who live in the

          6  watershed who don't want to sell their lands --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          8                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: But who would be

          9  willing, if approached appropriately to provide

         10  conservation easements which are cost-effective ways

         11  of safeguarding the watershed lands we need for a

         12  clean drinking water supply.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, thank you.

         14  Thank you, both.

         15                 DEP said during their testimony, they

         16  said a lot about solicitation, and acquisition goal

         17  is inconsistent with the spirit of the MOA and they

         18  made issue of that.

         19                 If you could opine a little further

         20  on that specific objection by DEP, we'd appreciate

         21  that.

         22                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: The two main things I

         23  would say to that are, the proposed legislation is

         24  consistent with the concept of solicitation in that

         25  it incorporates or suggests that DEP continual an
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          2  annual solicitation program. But ultimately to

          3  measure the effectiveness of the program, it's not

          4  merely solicitations that you want, but it's

          5  acquisition.

          6                 And, so, solicitation to some extent

          7  could be viewed as not the ultimate measure of the

          8  success of your program, but the important

          9  difference, even though your legislation talks about

         10  acquisition and the MOA includes solicitation

         11  targets is that your legislation is a goal. If it

         12  were a mandate to reach a certain acreage total,

         13  then some of the DEP objections one could

         14  understand, there would be pressure to buy lower

         15  quality lands. There would be pressure to avoid

         16  willing buyer/willing seller. But as a goal, as a

         17  statement of policy, and recognizing that all your

         18  legislation asks is to keep pace with what the City

         19  itself has been doing over the past nine years,

         20  recognizing that in the first several years there

         21  were inevitable and understandable start-up delays.

         22  So, now the program is chugging along, and with so

         23  small a percentage of lands owned by the City and

         24  State or controlled, 30 percent, as opposed to, as

         25  DEP testified, to nearly 100 for three other of the
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          2  systems, and close to or over 50 percent for Boston,

          3  the City certainly has a long way to go in this

          4  element of the program.

          5                 At the same time, your legislation

          6  recognizes this program must be based on a

          7  partnership with the Upstate communities, we

          8  wholeheartedly endorse that and we feel that the

          9  provision of this bill dealing with recreational

         10  opportunities addresses the number one sticking

         11  point in Upstate/Downstate relations at this time,

         12  which is in recognizing that on the City-acquired

         13  lands, both local watershed residents and tourist

         14  visitors should have the opportunity to use those

         15  lands in a way consistent with water quality

         16  protection.

         17                 MS. BREEN: And as representative of

         18  three of the signataries to the MOA, I think we

         19  comfortable with this because it really does, you

         20  know, to frame it as a hold the City's feet to the

         21  fire, in terms of reporting and accountability. It's

         22  accountability, as you said earlier in your comments

         23  to the Commissioner, accountability to the 8 million

         24  in-City water consumers, and many of whom are

         25  ratepayers as well, accountability on the progress
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          2  that the City is making on a very important part of

          3  an overall watershed protection program, and that is

          4  land acquisition. And land acquisition is key to

          5  continue avoiding filtration, land acquisition is

          6  key in those priority areas. Catskills, you also

          7  brought up earlier about the Catskill turbidity

          8  issue. EPA brought up Catskill turbidity as a

          9  critical point in the upcoming FAD that they say the

         10  best way to control activities and any development

         11  pressures in the West of Hudson is to buy the land

         12  to prevent development. And we see this as critical.

         13                 I would also point out with respect

         14  to questions about OMB and water rates, I think one

         15  of the -- we alluded to it a little bit with respect

         16  to the budget oversight authority that you have. In

         17  previous hearings a lot of questions arise on how

         18  much the water collection rates are, and I think

         19  that's a key area that the Council can focus in on

         20  how well the City is collecting all of the

         21  outstanding funds that are owed to it to build up

         22  those coffers in terms of how much money is

         23  available for these really important watershed

         24  protection programs.

         25                 Again, the Cat/Del plant, $10
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          2  billion, if it's like anything else, it's estimated

          3  in terms of construction costs, it starts out with

          4  one number and winds up being considerably more. And

          5  a million dollars a day. I mean, I think when people

          6  view it that way, they are able to really understand

          7  the costs that ultimately will be incurred. And even

          8  with filtration, you cannot forego watershed

          9  protection plans, so that's key to keep in mind.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         11  you, both. We really appreciate the opportunity to

         12  have you both here. You've both been great on this

         13  issue and we really appreciate collaboration that

         14  we've had. Thank you.

         15                 Yes, Thomas O'Brien from the

         16  Watershed Agricultural Council. I just need to take

         17  like a two-minute break. I'll be right back. The

         18  Counsel to the Committee will swear you in. But

         19  don't commence your testimony until I return.

         20                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         21  right hand. In the testimony that you're about to

         22  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         23  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         24                 MR. O'BRIEN: I do.

         25                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.
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          2                 (Recess taken.)

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We're back on.

          4  Okay.

          5                 Mr. O'Brien, thank you very much for

          6  being here. Appreciate it.

          7                 MR. O'BRIEN: My pleasure.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: My name is Tom

          9  O'Brien. I'm the Executive Director of the Watershed

         10  Agricultural Council of the New York City Watershed

         11  Region.

         12                 The Watershed Agricultural Council

         13  supports the renewal of the New York City DEP Land

         14  Acquisition Program. It believes that easement

         15  acquisition, specifically agricultural easements

         16  being required by WAC under contract with the DEP is

         17  the most cost-effective means by which DEP can

         18  protect the City's reservoirs in the Croton and the

         19  Cat/Del watersheds.

         20                 Ensuring a perpetually green

         21  watershed is the best source water protection

         22  strategy that the DEP can employ. Making agriculture

         23  easements a major component of this strategy, the

         24  DEP can also make a stated objective of bill No.

         25  375, and I quote, "in a manner that allows for
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          2  continued economic vitality for watershed

          3  residents."

          4                 WAC believes that farming is not only

          5  one of the most important sectors of the watershed

          6  economy, but is arguably the most sustainable, one

          7  that produces food just hours from one of the

          8  largest municipalities in the nation.

          9                 Farmland protection provides clean

         10  water, keeps intact the major economic driver in the

         11  watershed, and protects the local and regional food

         12  supply.

         13                 While the WAC does not know how many

         14  acres the city should protect in aggregate, a

         15  minimum of 22,500 additional agricultural easement

         16  acres should be purchased. WAC currently has 22,500

         17  acres in application from willing sellers in the

         18  Cat/Del watershed, already prioritized based on the

         19  best farmland soils and the most sensitive

         20  hydrological features. Increased and extended

         21  funding is what is needed to protect this green

         22  space.

         23                 Although WAC is not presently

         24  contracted to purchase agricultural easements on

         25  farms located in the Croton watershed, it is

                                                            98

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  well-positioned to do so. Some level of allocated

          3  funding (specifically earmarked to Croton) would

          4  enable WAC to partner with other local land trusts

          5  and leverage non-DEP sources of funding, both

          6  federal, state and local.

          7                 Ultimately, the success of the WAC

          8  Agricultural Easement Program will be dependent on

          9  its ability to monitor the properties in perpetuity

         10  to ensure that the conservation purposes are being

         11  met. A key factor in the success of a perpetual

         12  monitoring program will be DEP financial support of

         13  the WAC Easement Stewardship Fund. Significant

         14  future contributions to this Fund by DEP would be

         15  the foundation upon which WAC would leverage private

         16  donations, thereby ensuring the long-term

         17  sustainability of the program.

         18                 WAC commends the City of New York for

         19  its intent to continue its Watershed Protection

         20  Program. WAC believes that this Program is working

         21  for both upstate and downstate residents and should

         22  continue to work for many years to come, thereby

         23  ensuring clean drinking water to millions of New

         24  Yorkers provided in the most cost-effective manner.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          3                 In your statement you talked about

          4  enabling WAC to partner with other local land trusts

          5  and leverage non-DEP sources of funding. Just tell

          6  me briefly what kind of funding you get or don't get

          7  from DEP, and what kind of funding you don't or do

          8  get from federal, State and local? How does that

          9  work?

         10                 MR. O'BRIEN: We're funded presently

         11  to purchase agricultural easements west of Hudson

         12  Watershed only.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: By whom? By

         14  whom?

         15                 MR. O'BRIEN: By the New York State

         16  DEP.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         18                 MR. O'BRIEN: And that program is

         19  about fully funded.

         20                 We get a small percentage of dollars

         21  from the US Department of Agriculture to help in

         22  transactional costs.

         23                 The east of Hudson watershed, is a

         24  result of land values, is one in which donated

         25  easements are a real possibility. As well, we just

                                                            100

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  partnered with a local land trust in a county, and

          3  had a successful application to the State's

          4  Environmental Protection Program on New York's

          5  development rights on the local farm we purchased.

          6  And that was at no cost to DEP.

          7                 Often the transactional costs, some

          8  of the incidental and indirect costs, if they're

          9  provided, easement donations are a real possibility.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And you'll have

         11  to forgive my ignorance on this, but the Watershed

         12  Agricultural Council was one of the entities that

         13  was created like out of the MOA; is that right?

         14                 MR. O'BRIEN: Technically, no. It

         15  actually preceded the MOA by about five years.

         16                 New York, in cooperation with the

         17  farmers, as an alternative to regulation, formed

         18  this Council on which the Commissioner of DEP has a

         19  representative seat.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

         21                 MR. O'BRIEN: The land acquisition

         22  permit, under which DEP operates and then contracts

         23  to us comes out of the MOA, so there's a nexus.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right, okay.

         25                 And how much do you currently get
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          2  from DEP? And how much do you need to protect the

          3  minimum 22,500 additional agricultural easement

          4  purchases?

          5                 MR. O'BRIEN: The program to purchase

          6  22,500 acres would cost approximately $64 million

          7  over about a six-year period.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And how much do

          9  you get from DEP? Or are you slated to get from DEP

         10  over that period of time?

         11                 MR. O'BRIEN: We have just been

         12  awarded an additional 7 million, which has been

         13  committed, bringing the total commitment thus far to

         14  27 million.

         15                 We anticipate additional funding

         16  within the calendar year, proposal for 64 million

         17  above the 27, would have taken us out to about the

         18  year 2013 through the current FAD. And that

         19  additional funding would acquire the 22,500.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And so right now

         21  your funding is set for the next year, for the next

         22  couple of years?

         23                 MR. O'BRIEN: We are presently out of

         24  money. We anticipate $20 million, EPA has directed

         25  the agency, DEP, to award an additional $20 million
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          2  to the Agriculture Easement Program, and that

          3  apparently is in the process of going through

          4  budgetary approval within the City.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

          6                 MR. O'BRIEN: But we are at a low

          7  right now with those many acres in the pipeline, but

          8  not the ability to sign contracts.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Well, I'll

         10  direct staff to interact with you to make sure that

         11  your good efforts are given appropriate

         12  consideration in the budget.

         13                 Do we have a budget analyst here

         14  today?

         15                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: No.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         17                 MR. O'BRIEN: The City is working, DEP

         18  is working in good faith right now to do that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. We want to

         20  make sure we keep an eye out.

         21                 We do have a budgetary liaison to

         22  this Committee, but in the midst of doing budget

         23  work that's going on this week, all of the budget

         24  hands so-to-speak are on hand across the street, you

         25  know, working through these issues, but I'll direct
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          2  staff to make sure that we monitor the funding that

          3  you get from the City to make sure that's

          4  sufficient.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 MR. O'BRIEN: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

          8  O'Brien. It's a pleasure to have you here.

          9                 Okay, next witness is Don Riepe,

         10  American Littoral Society, and Douglas Adamo. Adamo,

         11  hopefully I'm saying that right.

         12                 I'm thinking for sure we're going to

         13  get testimony on 376. That's my guess.

         14                 MR. RIEPE: That's correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         16                 Don, a pleasure. A pleasure to have

         17  you here. Mr. Adamo, a pleasure.

         18                 Donna DeCostanzo will administer the

         19  oath and then off we go.

         20                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         21  right hand.

         22                 In the testimony that you're about to

         23  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         24  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         25                 MR. ADAMO: I do.
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          2                 MR. RIEPE: I do.

          3                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          5  you.

          6                 Don, please. Yes, pleasure to have

          7  you here.

          8                 MR. RIEPE: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'll look

         10  forward to your comments on Intro. 376.

         11                 MR. RIEPE: Yes, I've come here

         12  basically to support your bills, and thank you for

         13  all your efforts, your timely efforts, for putting

         14  all these bills along. And I don't have a lot to say

         15  about it, other than I do agree with the time frames

         16  on it. I know one of the comments that Commissioner

         17  Lloyd made was that, one of the pushback example,

         18  that the draft comprehensive plan from March 1 to

         19  June 1, and realize it's only three months, but

         20  while we're pushing back these time frames, we must

         21  also realize that we're losing 40 acres of marsh a

         22  year and that land development around the bay is

         23  increasing at a rapid rate. If one were to look in

         24  the Rockaways, for example, you would see that much

         25  of the open space that's left out there is currently
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          2  being developed, along with the Arverne

          3  Redevelopment Plan.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          5                 MR. RIEPE: I would like to see that

          6  included in a look at the watershed, that whole

          7  Arverne redevelopment, in particular the eastern

          8  section, which would be open space right now. I know

          9  the western section is being currently developed,

         10  but there is a central and eastern section that if

         11  linked together would make a really nice urban

         12  seashore park, which I think New York City needs.

         13  And if you look at that land, and look at the ocean,

         14  primary dunes, the boardwalk and you have a growing

         15  secondary dune, you have a wonderful ecosystem being

         16  developed there, and protected, it would also

         17  protect Jamaica Bay. We know that developing these

         18  barrier islands is never the best thing to do, and

         19  for years we've been fighting against that. So,

         20  considering the amount of private development that's

         21  ongoing in the Rockaways, we'd like to see the

         22  Cityland that's currently there be looked at, taking

         23  a hard look at preservation.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That would be

         25  part, presumably of -- that City land is owned by
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          2  which agency?

          3                 MR. RIEPE: I think it's the housing.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Well, that

          5  presumably would be a parcel that's under

          6  consideration for transfer to the Parks Department

          7  under the wetlands protection --

          8                 MR. RIEPE: I don't know if that's

          9  currently being considered right now. I think people

         10  may have considered that as a done deal, but I think

         11  we really need to take another look at that in light

         12  of the housing market, number one, and number two,

         13  the amount of private development that's ongoing on

         14  that whole barrier strip right now.

         15                 And also the natural systems that are

         16  out there that are currently growing.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, just so it

         18  doesn't get lost in the sauce here, I'd like to

         19  direct staff to talk to Don afterwards and find out

         20  that that piece of property between the two, I guess

         21  armor and developments or whatever --

         22                 MR. RIEPE: Right, Arverne Renewal

         23  Area.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. And

         25  whether or not there's a piece of property there
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          2  that is under consideration under the wetlands

          3  transfer bill, law, for a transfer. We should at

          4  least take a look at it.

          5                 MR. RIEPE: Right.

          6                 The eastern section of that project.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, talk to

          8  Donna and Peter afterwards, and make sure, and we'll

          9  take a look whether or not that's a piece of

         10  property that could conceivably be considered under

         11  the wetlands transfer.

         12                 Because that was what the wetlands

         13  transfer thing was all about, to see if we could

         14  move -- but we'll take a look at that.

         15                 MR. RIEPE: Okay, thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         17                 MR. RIEPE: And just looking at this,

         18  it's very comprehensive, I think the time frames are

         19  somewhat realistic in terms of -- I realize it's

         20  ambitious, but a lot of this information should

         21  currently be in place from previous environmental

         22  impact studies or on the bay, a lot of this

         23  information should be there, a lot of just pulling

         24  it all together and working closely with the agency.

         25  So, I don't think that March 1st, 2007, is an
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          2  unrealistic deadline.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Neither do we.

          4  We heard the Commissioner's comments. We'll consider

          5  them. Because she wanted to move that and also move

          6  the final -- move that to June and move the final to

          7  December 31st, '07.

          8                 MR. RIEPE: I can see the final being

          9  moved back, but the draft is just a draft, and the

         10  sooner we get that, the more, you know, time we'll

         11  have to work on that draft.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, and if the

         13  draft gets moved to June, right? And then we'll be

         14  considering it like during the summer and stuff,

         15  when it's hard to get people to focus.

         16                 I think I'm being advised that later

         17  on during when he was testifying they were okay on

         18  that, on like the March date, notwithstanding their

         19  testimony.

         20                 MR. RIEPE: Right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So they

         22  negotiated against themselves or whatever. Okay.

         23                 MR. RIEPE: And, again, that's

         24  basically it. I am in agreement with everything you

         25  do.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Don, thank you

          3  for your time.

          4                 MR. RIEPE: You're doing a great job.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No one has given

          6  more of his time and talent to Jamaica Bay than you.

          7  So, coming from you, that's a high compliment. Thank

          8  you, Don.

          9                 MR. RIEPE: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, sir. Yes,

         11  sir. Mr. Adamo.

         12                 MR. ADAMO: Yes, thank you, Mr.

         13  Chairman.

         14                 I'm Doug Adamo, Chief of the Division

         15  of Natural Resources at Gateway National Recreation

         16  Area.

         17                 I'm appearing today on behalf of the

         18  Jamaica Bay Watershed Protection Plan Advisory

         19  Committee, and as you know quite well, Mr. Chairman,

         20  Local Law 71 created the Advisory Committee, which

         21  consists of seven members, each from different

         22  institutions with an interest in the future of the

         23  health of Jamaica Bay.

         24                 The Advisory Committee has been

         25  charged with providing advice and recommendations
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          2  with Council and New York City Department of

          3  Environmental Protection on the Jamaica Bay

          4  Watershed Protection Plant.

          5                 The Advisory Committee greatly

          6  appreciates the opportunity to testify in support of

          7  Introduction No. 376. The Advisory Committee

          8  strongly supports all aspects of this bill, which

          9  would amend the Administrative Code of the City of

         10  New York in relation to the plan, including

         11  specifically certain milestones related to the

         12  development of the plan. Local Law 71, enacted

         13  almost a year ago, was a figurative watershed event

         14  in the history of Jamaica Bay, the City's most

         15  important ecological and endangered resource.

         16                 Local Law 71 requires DEP to develop

         17  a plan to restore and maintain the water quality and

         18  integrity, ecological integrity of Jamaica Bay.

         19                 Introduction No. 376 will, among

         20  other things, extend the deadlines relating to the

         21  plan's development and add interim milestones, all

         22  of which in the Advisory Committee's view will serve

         23  to increase support for the plan, to improve its

         24  technical aspects and ultimately lead to a faster

         25  and improved restoration of Jamaica Bay.
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          2                 The Committee also respectfully notes

          3  that it believes the revised process as set forth in

          4  the legislation to be a carefully calibrated one,

          5  and hope that the bill's milestones are not modified

          6  later in the legislative process as to disrupt the

          7  current balance.

          8                 The Advisory Committee would like to

          9  address and voice support for a couple of particular

         10  aspects of Intro No. 376.

         11                 First, the Advisory Committee

         12  supports the bill's one-year extension of DEP's time

         13  to develop the plan.

         14                 While one year is on the outside edge

         15  of what the Advisory Committee views as an

         16  appropriate length of extension, it remains

         17  reasonable.

         18                 In the end, we anticipate that the

         19  extension will contribute to a better plan by DEP

         20  and the additional time will provide the Advisory

         21  Committee, the public and other agencies with more

         22  opportunities to provide input and feedback.

         23                 We remain of the view, as we believe

         24  the Council was when it passed Local Law 71, that

         25  the plan should be a living document.
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          2                 Local Law 71 requires review and

          3  revision of the plan, as well as a report on

          4  progress every two years.

          5                 Intro. No. 376 would not modify these

          6  requirements.

          7                 The Advisory Committee will continue

          8  to urge DEP to complete the first iteration of the

          9  plan as rapidly as practicable so that actions can

         10  begin to be taken and Jamaica Bay starts to see the

         11  rewards of everyone's work.

         12                 Second, the Advisory Committee

         13  strongly supports the additional steps in the

         14  development of the plan that are proposed by Intro.

         15  No. 376.

         16                 The current law requires the Advisory

         17  Committee to submit its recommendations by July 1st,

         18  2006, and DEP could then finalize its plan by

         19  September 1, 2006.

         20                 The legislation being considered

         21  today would add several significant interim

         22  milestones to this process in conjunction with

         23  extending the date for final release of the plan by

         24  a year.

         25                 The Advisory Committee would still
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          2  submit recommendations by July 1st. Indeed, as we

          3  discuss more at the conclusion of our testimony, the

          4  Committee is looking forward to submission of these

          5  recommendations at the end of this week.

          6                 Personally to the proposed process on

          7  September 1st, 2006, DEP would provide a response to

          8  these recommendations, thus enabling the Advisory

          9  Committee and the public with an opportunity to

         10  provide comments prior to DEP's release of a draft

         11  plan by March 1st, 2007, and a final plan by

         12  September 1st, 2007.

         13                 This iterative process will maximize

         14  exchange of information and perspectives between

         15  DEP, the Advisory Committee and the public.

         16                 To date, the Advisory Committee has

         17  found that our relationship with DEP to be rewarding

         18  and productive. DEP is clearly committed to this

         19  process and to helping the Bay, has been a very

         20  engaged partner with the Advisory Committee.

         21                 Input from the public has also been

         22  significant and valuable in helping the Advisory

         23  Committee along its learning curve.

         24                 Given how well things have gone to

         25  date and the continuing commitment from all members

                                                            114

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  on the Advisory Committee to see this process

          3  through, we believe that the steps proposed to be

          4  added by Intro. No. 376 will improve the plan and

          5  its ultimate chance of success.

          6                 Jamaica Bay's value to the City, the

          7  region and the nation is immeasurable. Accessible to

          8  America's most populated City by subway and bus,

          9  Jamaica Bay is a haven for wildlife and the millions

         10  of people who visit the area each year.

         11                 Yet, as this Committee knows all too

         12  well, Jamaica Bay's resources are in jeopardy.

         13                 Thousands of acres of the Bay's

         14  marshlands are mysteriously disappearing. Scientists

         15  predict that at the current rate, the marshlands

         16  will completely vanish in less than 20 years.

         17                 Poor and in some places deteriorating

         18  water quality remains a continual problem for the

         19  bay and may even be spurring the marsh loss.

         20                 In response to this crisis, in 2005

         21  the City of New York enacted local law 71 marking a

         22  new commitment by the City to saving this truly

         23  special place.

         24                 This Thursday the Advisory Committee

         25  will provide its first formal contribution to the
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          2  process. As called for by Local Law 71, we will be

          3  submitting our recommendations on the Jamaica Bay

          4  Watershed Protection Plan in anticipation and in the

          5  hope that the legislation being considered today is

          6  enacted later this summer, we are considering these

          7  recommendations to be preliminary and a

          8  work-in-progress.

          9                 The Advisory Committee hopes that

         10  these initial recommendations are helpful to the

         11  Council and to DEP.

         12                 We will continue to work to improve

         13  them over the summer and throughout next year, and

         14  again, in anticipation of Intro. No. 376's passage,

         15  and the submission of DEP's final plan in 2007.

         16                 Mr. Chairman, it is an understatement

         17  to say that your leadership today has been the

         18  difference.

         19                 We thank you and look forward to an

         20  extremely productive relationship on behalf of

         21  Jamaica Bay in the months ahead.

         22                 Again, you have the Advisory

         23  Committee's greatest appreciation.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, thank you.

         25  Thank you, Mr. Adamo. You and the Advisory Committee
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          2  are working real hard to make things happen, and I'm

          3  grateful to you for your hard work. And I'm blessed

          4  to have an excellent staff here. You know, I'm

          5  grateful to have you folks who are so interested in

          6  giving of your time and talents to the Bay. I'm just

          7  trying to tie the knot, that's all. I appreciate it.

          8                 With regard to the Commissioner's

          9  extension on the final report going to the end of

         10  December, I know, Don, you said that was not as much

         11  concern to you as the moving of the draft, which was

         12  relented on a little bit.

         13                 What about, Mr. Adamo, what do you

         14  think about the pushback to further than the year

         15  timetable set out in this bill to December 31st?

         16                 Oh, I see, because you indicated in

         17  your statement that while one year was on the

         18  outside edge with the Advisory Committee views and

         19  appropriate length of extension it is reasonable.

         20  But, you know, she wants to go beyond that another

         21  three months.

         22                 MR. ADAMO: My personal view would be

         23  that wouldn't be a problem. I would have to go back

         24  to the Committee --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.
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          2                 MR. ADAMO: But I think affording them

          3  another three months, I think it is, or four,

          4  wouldn't be unreasonable either.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. I just

          6  wanted to get your views on that.

          7                 MR. ADAMO: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          9  you, both, for loving the bay so much and moving to

         10  back it up with your hard work.

         11                 MR. ADAMO: Thank you.

         12                 MR. RIEPE: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Marian Rose.

         14  Next panel is Marian Rose from the CWCWC, and Yigal

         15  Gelb. Hopefully I'm saying that right. Yigal Gelb,

         16  from New York City Audobon.

         17                 Okay, thank you. Thank you both for

         18  being here. Donna will administer the oath, and then

         19  we can hear your testimony.

         20                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         21  right hand.

         22                 In the testimony that you're about to

         23  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         24  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         25                 MS. ROSE: I do.
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          2                 MR. GELB: I do.

          3                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          5  you.

          6                 Well, Marian I've known for a real

          7  long time and you've been a great friend, and so

          8  Marian, you can testify first, okay?

          9                 DR. ROSE: Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Mr. Gelb, he is

         11  a nice guy, too.

         12                 MR. GELB: I also believe in ladies

         13  first.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, and Marian

         15  and I go back a long time.

         16                 DR. ROSE: Thank you very much for

         17  holding these hearings. It's very useful and we

         18  appreciate the opportunity.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         20                 DR. ROSE: The first thing I would

         21  like to say is CWCWC is supportive of DEP acquiring

         22  land in the Catskill Delaware, and what you have in

         23  your bill, and we agree it's a very highly effective

         24  way of preserving source water quality. So we go

         25  along with that.
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          2                 However, we respectfully urge you to

          3  strengthen the portion of this bill pertaining to

          4  the Croton and to incorporate our suggestion,

          5  namely, that the acquisition by DEP of significant

          6  land in the Croton watershed, that there be some

          7  goal; and secondly, the swift upgrading of

          8  wastewater treatment plants, WWTPs, a program that

          9  is significantly in arrears.

         10                 The bill states, "The acquisition of

         11  watershed lands and conservation easements,

         12  resulting in the preservation of these lands as

         13  forests, meadows and wetlands, has been recognized

         14  by the EPA, as one of the most important strategies

         15  for safeguarding unfiltered drinking water supplies

         16  like New York City's. I'm just quoting from the

         17  bill.

         18                 My comment is this statement might

         19  mislead one to believe that EPA is only concerned in

         20  acquiring watershed lands to protect source water

         21  for unfiltered systems. But this is simply not the

         22  case. The multi-barrier approach, applies as much to

         23  the Croton, that is to be filtered, as to the

         24  Catskill Delaware for which prolonged filtration

         25  avoidance is being sought.
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          2                 So, I'd like to give you a couple of

          3  quotes. One is that the EPA's websites, all of them,

          4  stress that source water protection is important for

          5  filtered, as for unfiltered waters, at a plenary

          6  session recently, Tracy Mehan, III, who is Assistant

          7  Administrator for Water, United States Environmental

          8  Protection Agency, stated: "...preventing

          9  contamination from entering water bodies serves as

         10  the first barrier to reducing consumer exposure to

         11  contaminants in their drinking water."

         12                 These citations, including one from a

         13  former EPA top administrator, show unequivocally

         14  that regardless of the treatment protocol, whether

         15  filtered or unfiltered, EPA regards source water

         16  protection as being first in line, nowhere is there

         17  a distinction between filtered and unfiltered. And

         18  as the bill states, as your bill states, keeping

         19  critical land out of developments through

         20  acquisition is the best means of protecting.

         21                 Now, how is source water protection

         22  being applied respectively to the Cat/Del and the

         23  Croton Watershed?

         24                 For the Catskill Delaware the bill

         25  states, "The Commissioner shall establish a goal of
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          2  acquiring fee simple ownership or conservation

          3  easements for at least 75,000 acres within the

          4  Catskill/Delaware watershed during the period from

          5  2007 to 2017."

          6                 And Mr. Chairman, you have our full

          7  support for that. For the Croton, the bill merely

          8  says, "The Commissioner shall establish a goal of

          9  pursuing increased watershed protection and land

         10  acquisition efforts in the Croton watershed." To

         11  help accomplish this goal, the Commissioner shall

         12  access at minimum the following: (1) the

         13  effectiveness of the Croton watershed management

         14  strategy to protect the Croton watershed and croton

         15  supply..."

         16                 The bill does not attempt to quantify

         17  for the Croton, nor does it establish a time limit

         18  or a time line. The contrast between the treatment

         19  of the watershed is very stark.

         20                 To inject some degree of reality in

         21  the bill's proposed Croton watershed management

         22  strategy, a specific program to acquire watershed

         23  lands within the high priority areas established by

         24  DEP must be included.

         25                 To buy land, the same source of
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          2  funding could be used as a few years ago when in

          3  order to dull the opposition of some Bronx

          4  politicians to the Croton filtration plant in Van

          5  Cortlandt Park, over $200 million was siphoned off

          6  from the Municipal Water Finance Authority to pay

          7  for a multitude of park embellishments in the Bronx

          8  - a use of those funding sources whose legality

          9  remains highly questionable. Now, that same funding

         10  source could be used, this time legally, for

         11  acquisition of land in the Croton watershed.

         12  Two-hundred million dollars would go a long way

         13  towards paying for land that would help protect

         14  source water quality and ensure healthy drinking

         15  water for the consumer.

         16                 The "Multi-Barrier Approach" is not

         17  being applied to Croton. From DEP's own figures,

         18  phosphorus levels in eight out of 10 of the Croton

         19  reservoirs have increased significantly since 1997,

         20  among them, the Croton Falls Reservoir.

         21                 Now, we know that in times of

         22  drought, when the Cat/Del system is no longer able

         23  to supply the region's needs, waters from the Croton

         24  Falls reservoir are diverted directly into the

         25  Delaware aqueduct. In other words, into part of the
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          2  Cat/Del system.

          3                 Phosphorus concentration in the

          4  Croton Falls reservoir have increased since 1997,

          5  and are now 57 percent above the target value of 15

          6  micrograms per liter. Phosphorus levels in the

          7  Middle Branch Reservoir that supplies the Croton

          8  branch with water, are also way above the targeted

          9  levels, 55 percent above the targeted value of 20

         10  micrograms per liter.

         11                 The Middle Branch watershed is being

         12  overrun by development, and I've included this map

         13  where all the red dots show some of the developments

         14  that are taking place in the watershed. You see it's

         15  absolutely pock-marked by developments that are

         16  either in the process of being approved or have just

         17  been approved within the last few years. And there's

         18  also a list of developments that I've included.

         19                 This is only a partial list, but it

         20  shows that it's been raised, the disparity between

         21  accusations by developers in the Croton Watershed

         22  and the acquisitions by DEP. Well over 3,000 acres

         23  in the Croton watershed are now in the process of

         24  being developed, over 3,000 acres. Whereas, DEP has

         25  acquired about 800 acres in the last ten years.
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          2  There is a huge disparity there, and there is

          3  absolutely no target as to how much more DEP should

          4  acquire.

          5                 Another concern in the Croton is the

          6  wastewater treatment plants that have not been

          7  upgraded. As of January 27th, 2006, only 14 percent

          8  of the total East of Hudson Sewage Treatment Plants

          9  have been upgraded to tertiary levels as required by

         10  the MOA. Only nine wastewater treatment plants out

         11  of 69, only nine out of 69 have been upgraded to

         12  tertiary levels.

         13                 By contrast, plants in West of

         14  Hudson, 97 percent of those had been upgraded to the

         15  tertiary levels. So, we are suggesting that you

         16  include an accelerated plan to make up for lost time

         17  and upgrade the Croton Wastewater treatment plants

         18  to tertiary levels, as soon as possible.

         19                 Those of us who live in the Croton

         20  watershed and participate actively in its protection

         21  have seen little sign of DEP helping in or leading

         22  any end of it to protect it.

         23                 The regulatory agencies much-touted

         24  multi-barrier approach to watershed protection is

         25  nonexistent in the Croton watershed for all
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          2  practical purposes.

          3                 Croton water is to be filtered and

          4  there is next to nothing being done to protect the

          5  source water. If the present rate of degradation is

          6  allowed to continue, the Croton's natural defenses,

          7  in other words, its wetlands, its soils and its

          8  forest will collapse and water quality will

          9  deteriorate to a point where expensive remediation,

         10  beyond the $1.5 billion already being spent on the

         11  treatment plant will be needed.

         12                 At a public hearing in January 2001

         13  at De Witt Clinton High School, Commissioner Ward

         14  stated that rising water and sewer rates would act

         15  as a regressive tax on the ratepayers. That was a

         16  candid statement, as far as it went.

         17                 What the Commissioners neglected to

         18  say was that the ratepayers will have to bear the

         19  burden of the regulatory agencies' willful neglect

         20  of the Croton and end up paying higher rates for

         21  lower-quality water. The political fall-out from

         22  such a manifestly unfair rise in rates could be

         23  considerable.

         24                 However, if past performance is any

         25  indication, DEP will only do the minimum to protect
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          2  water quality in the Croton, and this bill, as

          3  proposed, will not force DEP to do anything beyond

          4  that minimum.

          5                 Again, we respectfully urge you,

          6  Council Member Gennaro, to strengthen the portion of

          7  this bill pertaining to the Croton and to

          8  incorporate the suggestions we have made that DEP

          9  buy significant land in the Croton Watershed and to

         10  swiftly upgrade the wastewater treatment plants so

         11  that this extraordinary watershed may continue to

         12  produce clean, healthy and affordable water, as it

         13  has shown itself capable of doing for hundreds of

         14  years in the past.

         15                 Again, we thank you very much for

         16  this opportunity to vent about the Croton.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         18  Marian.

         19                 Between you and David, I can't

         20  imagine better advocates for the Croton System. I've

         21  already directed Counsel to the Committee to give

         22  all of your comments the most consideration as we go

         23  forward and thank you for laying them out so

         24  cogently for us to digest. Thank you. Thank you,

         25  Marian. I greatly appreciate you being here today.
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 Mr. Gelb.

          4                 MR. GELB: Yes, thank you, Mr.

          5  Chairman. Thank you also, your staff and your

          6  Committee, for all your hard work.

          7                 My name is Yigal Gelb, I'm Program

          8  Director at New York City Audobon, and on behalf of

          9  our 10,000 members and myself, we're extremely

         10  impressed with all the work that you guys do. So,

         11  it's always good to reiterate that.

         12                 Today I'm going to speak in support

         13  of Intro 375 specifically about the goal of 75,000

         14  acres in the next ten years. I'm going to speak more

         15  specifically about the value of this acquisition to

         16  wildlife, and specifically we believe that this

         17  additional habitat would provide very important, a

         18  very important shelter for migratory birds. There

         19  are birds that come from Central and South America,

         20  they fly all the way to the Boreal forests out in

         21  Canada and all the way actually to the arctic and

         22  further stopovers that they do along their route,

         23  preserving habitats such as this is extremely

         24  important.

         25                 There's also at least ten species
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          2  that are called at-risk species that are contained

          3  within the watershed, specifically the western parts

          4  of the watershed, western to the Hudson River, and

          5  protecting the habitat that these specific species

          6  depend on is extremely important.

          7                 Some of these species include the

          8  Bald Eagle, a species that is well known, the Common

          9  Loon, and other less-known species that are equally

         10  amazing and marvelous and impressive, such as the

         11  Canada Warbler.

         12                 So, we believe that it's very

         13  important to safeguard the habitat of these species,

         14  not only for the people that live around there, but

         15  also the benefit of New Yorkers that can come up

         16  there and marvel at these species.

         17                 And then the greater the protection

         18  of wildlife, we believe, is also the greater, so far

         19  the greater benefits to people who visit these

         20  areas.

         21                 And, so, there's a link between

         22  preserving this habitat and the value that people,

         23  that have accrued to people, both local people that

         24  can enjoy tourism and recreational opportunities,

         25  and to other people who come from across the region
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          2  to marvel at some of this wildlife.

          3                 And, so, maintaining this link and

          4  highlighting this link is very important to us.

          5  Again, preserving habitat ultimately accrues as a

          6  benefit to humans who visit this area.

          7                 And we also want to emphasize a point

          8  that's been made earlier today, it's very important

          9  to allow access, and as much access as possible,

         10  actually, to local residents and to visitors from

         11  the area, because ultimately they are our partners

         12  in securing this habitat. And, so anything that

         13  brings them onboard and makes it easier for them to

         14  fathom giving up their property or entering into an

         15  easement, or anything of that sort, I think

         16  ultimately really bolsters our mission here.

         17                 So, I would even go as far as even

         18  suggesting camping and other things like that. But

         19  anything that opens up this area is important and

         20  this bill goes a long way to making sure that

         21  happens.

         22                 I'm going to very quickly say that

         23  there are intangible goods ultimately here involved.

         24  The value of wildlife, healthy wildlife is very hard

         25  to measure. It's definitely not -- it's definitely
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          2  over and above the value of the local tourism, so

          3  we're under-estimating the value of wildlife, if we

          4  just look at local tourism. And to echo what's been

          5  just now said, there is a very good difference

          6  between water that is not filtrated and water that

          7  is already filtrated. So, maintaining this pure

          8  water has a value in and of itself. It's probably

          9  not measured. So, it's intangible values that really

         10  ought to be stressed when we opt for this plan of

         11  preserving our watershed, acquiring additional

         12  habitat, both for wildlife and for humans.

         13                 So, thank you very much for letting

         14  me testify today.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Gelb. It's always a pleasure to partner with New

         17  York City Audubon for all of the great work that you

         18  guys do. And thank you for providing some of the

         19  backdrop and some of the intangibles and some of the

         20  benefit beyond what was already discussed today.

         21                 So, I appreciate that. Thank you for

         22  supporting us so whole-heartedly.

         23                 MR. GELB: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And give the

         25  best to all my friends back at New York City
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          2  Audubon. Thank you.

          3                 MR. GELB: For sure. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Marian, thank

          5  you. Thank you. I appreciate it.

          6                 DR. ROSE: Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You bet.

          8                 So, we're going to introduce the next

          9  panel.  Paul Mankiewicz. My good friend Paul

         10  Mankiewicz, my good friend David Ferguson and my

         11  good friend Eugenia Flatow. This is like all friends

         12  of Jim.

         13                 Paul, David, Eugenia.

         14                 And the final panel which will be

         15  after this one, Carolyn Summers, Arnold Frogel, it

         16  looks like, the Sierra Club. Arnold Frogel.

         17                 Anybody here from the Open Space

         18  Institute? Okay. So, we have this panel to be

         19  followed by Carolyn Summers and Arnold Frogel.

         20                 I'm due at budget negotiations at

         21  4:00, but hopefully they're on break or something

         22  like that, haven't started up yet,. Let's hope so.

         23  Let's hope so.

         24                 Eugenia, why do we start with you.

         25                 Oh, Donna has to swear you in. Sorry.
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          2                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In the testimony that

          3  you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

          4  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

          5  truth?

          6                 MS. FLATOW: I do.

          7                 MR. FERGUSON: I do.

          8                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          9                 MS. FLATOW: I'll make it easy for

         10  you. I called your office to say that I was sure

         11  that we'd all agree that this was a wonderful idea,

         12  and that all these things are perfect, and I didn't

         13  think you had to sit all afternoon to hear that from

         14  all of us. So, I've given you a page and a half of

         15  weird ideas.

         16                 There must be some way that we can

         17  take land that is necessary to protect these

         18  reservoirs and declare it off limits and have the

         19  Upstate legal people keep it from being used for

         20  development.

         21                 I see no reason why that can't be

         22  done. And I think it would be very useful if I could

         23  have a committee that would combine the Upstate

         24  people and the Downstate people so that we'd

         25  indicate how complete we are for the things we think
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          2  have to be done, and we'd all get the same

          3  information.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Eugenia, you are

          6  a great American. Thank you. I appreciate that.

          7                 Paul.

          8                 MR. MANKIEWICZ: Again, I'll try to be

          9  extremely simple, in terms of presentation. If you

         10  take the 2,000 square miles of the watershed and you

         11  measure out one foot of precipitation that goes into

         12  groundwater, that comes out to 1.1 billion gallons

         13  of water a day. In other words, the 1.2 gallons of

         14  water that we use each day is very close to about

         15  one-third of the rainfall, a little less, going into

         16  the ground. So, we're very close in terms of the

         17  sustainability of how we work the watershed and our

         18  City Croton development.

         19                 We need to actually have control over

         20  the land. The way we do that is to acquire it, or

         21  acquire conservation easements, but we are not, we

         22  don't have a huge grasp on this, so basically I'll

         23  recommend three fundamental measures on how well the

         24  watershed is working.

         25                 One is the cold water fishery. If you
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          2  have trout, stone flies (sic), it's good, because

          3  the water quality is good enough for them, it's good

          4  enough for us.

          5                 If you have diverse biologically and

          6  ecologically, biologically diverse, ecologically

          7  productive, essentially the subcanopy and herbaceous

          8  layer that tells you that you have a root layer

          9  that's actually opening up pour space and moving

         10  water into groundwater. So, the argument against

         11  your hunting I could make as well, but when you

         12  start to get tens or a hundred deer per square mile,

         13  it ruin your understory and almost guarantees

         14  erosion.

         15                 So, the management of that landscape,

         16  in terms of optimizing or maximizing, tremendous

         17  ecological diversity of the plant layers, the

         18  understory shrubs and herbaceous plants, tell us how

         19  well it's working. And it's because of the

         20  management to date, we haven't done well.

         21                 And underlying both of those really,

         22  in every cubic centimeter of humic matter you've

         23  heard me say before, 2,000 square meters, that's the

         24  fundamental filter. Basically being able to conserve

         25  that filter means we have to be able to own it and
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          2  to share the ownership of our Upstate partners. We

          3  have to basically make sure, and Al Gore's movie is

          4  a case in point, make sure so that some of it

          5  doesn't dry out, to do that we need a covering of

          6  vegetation, we need essentially the cold water

          7  signal that we're also monitoring, as DEP does, but

          8  we have to look at those three together. Plant

          9  diversity and all together coverage, especially

         10  understory, the cold water signal it develops and

         11  how well the soil system itself is developing.

         12                 We can't do that without having some

         13  kind of capacity to manage the land and ownership is

         14  a good way to go, conservation, easements or

         15  otherwise. You have to pass the legislation like

         16  this to basically make our watershed sustainable

         17  into the distant future, because we just don't have

         18  that much excess.

         19                 It's a great water supply. It was

         20  brilliantly put in place by DEP. We now need to make

         21  the extra steps.

         22                 And I much appreciate the

         23  Commissioner's words altogether, and there's a four

         24  or whatever year time frame in politics, ecological

         25  systems develop over tens of years, and without
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          2  having that kind of a time frame, we can't get there

          3  from here.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          5  you, Paul. I appreciate it. Appreciate that.

          6                 David.

          7                 MR. FERGUSON: Well, thank you, again,

          8  Jim, and everybody and Donna, for this opportunity.

          9  I'm not as much of a good American, so I'm going to

         10  read something a little longer.

         11                 I just wanted to comment on the

         12  Commissioner's statement about holding off, going on

         13  a same track with a five-year plan FAD business with

         14  EPA, as if she wanted to keep this idea of buying

         15  property as a bargaining chip for negotiating the

         16  next FAD, which I found rather upsetting because the

         17  principle, as you announced it, and as we all, most

         18  of us here understand it, is that whatever you can

         19  do to protect the water supply by buying land is

         20  what you should do. So, that kind of philosophy kind

         21  of disturbed me. But anyhow, we whole-heartedly -- I

         22  represent the HDFC Council. I represent about 1,200

         23  tenant-sponsored co-ops throughout the City, mainly

         24  in Bed Stuy, Central Brooklyn, Harlem and the Bronx.

         25  And we whole-heartedly support -- and I'm also vice
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          2  president of the CWCWC with Marian, we

          3  whole-heartedly support Intro. 375. We cannot afford

          4  to rest on the laurels of the current planned

          5  purchase program. Timely acquisition of land would

          6  have spared the endless and increasingly frustrating

          7  battles being fought every day by watershed

          8  residents protecting the Croton.

          9                 The intense pressures of

         10  unsustainable development that currently threaten

         11  the Croton are increasingly being felt in the

         12  Cat/Del System. The land acquisition program now in

         13  place will not guarantee protection of the Cat/Del

         14  Watershed from the cumulative negative impact of

         15  such developments.

         16                 And I might also add, I'm very

         17  familiar with the Catskills. I have many friends

         18  there and I go there quite frequently and I've

         19  walked through many of the areas, including where

         20  Belair, you know, I have friends down in Pine Hill,

         21  and the think soils and the hugely steep slopes are

         22  much more erodible and much more vulnerable than the

         23  Croton, even though the Croton is built up more.

         24                 So, I think it is increasingly

         25  essential to protect this land, because previous
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          2  testimony of the previous hearing you had here, that

          3  somehow the idea that while we signed the MOA and

          4  this is as much land as we're buying and that's it,

          5  just doesn't make any sense to anybody who really

          6  cares about protecting the water supply, because

          7  you're going to have more development, that's part

          8  of the MOA, and we hope it's well-designed and

          9  certainly not something like Belair, but this is

         10  part of the whole deal. So, you're going to have

         11  more development, you're going to have more pressure

         12  on the land. So, therefore, you can't just say you

         13  buy this much land and all the watershed is

         14  protected, because it isn't. And especially when the

         15  figures come out obviously, but we have much less

         16  land than other on filtered systems, and if you

         17  filter, as Maurice Minchi said at the last

         18  celebration at the big photo-op in the middle of the

         19  reservoir, which is quite beautiful, and he said, if

         20  we ever have to filter this, then all the land

         21  protection and all the watershed is going to go down

         22  the drain. And that's what we're experiencing in the

         23  Croton which, you know, we're for the whole system

         24  and the Croton is part of the system, so we've

         25  become, taken over this orphan because there are
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          2  people that are fighting to protect the Cat Del

          3  because it's unfiltered. But the Croton has been the

          4  kind of sacrificial lamb.

          5                 So, we urge the City Council to fund

          6  land acquisition in the Croton Watershed. If the

          7  City can find $200 million of ratepayers' money to

          8  encourage Bronx officials to support a filtration

          9  plant in the park, an amount 20 times more than the

         10  City put up for the Croton land in the MOA in 1997,

         11  DEP should be able to find the money to protect this

         12  critical portion of the water supply for 9 million

         13  people. Otherwise, EPA's often cited multi-barrier

         14  approach is merely wishful thinking.

         15                 Even now a substantial acquisition of

         16  Croton land would be an investment. Filtration is no

         17  magic bullet. On the tour of a filtration plant in

         18  Worchester, Massachusetts, arranged by DEP, the

         19  plant engineer explained, "this is a direct

         20  filtration plant, which is what you guys are looking

         21  at also. If you're using Mississippi water, you may

         22  not want direct filtration because there is too much

         23  on the filters. By having direct filtration you

         24  eliminate some very large sedimentation basins. And

         25  I'm talking large. I mean big. Your sedimentation
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          2  area will be bigger than your filters. Direct

          3  filtration eliminates that whole step. And you can

          4  only do this if you have good source waters. That's

          5  the key."

          6                 Quite apart from the fact that

          7  degrading wetlands, streams and reservoirs below

          8  their highest and best use as a drinking water

          9  supply directly violates the Clean Water Act, and

         10  setting aside the impact on the critical Cat/Del

         11  terminal reservoirs located East of Hudson,

         12  continued degradation of the Croton waters will

         13  eventually require enhanced treatment by those huge

         14  sedimentation basins. They would have to be added to

         15  the existing plant in Van Cortlandt Park. At what

         16  additional environmental cost to that Bronx

         17  community? And at what additional cost to rate

         18  payers for construction and operation? Can we afford

         19  the paving over of a watershed that supplies up to

         20  30 percent of the City's water during droughts?

         21                 We further urge the City Council to

         22  support an audit of DEP by the City Comptroller.

         23  There might just be another $200 million for the

         24  Croton land acquisition in DEP's $16 billion capital

         25  budget. And if, by some miracle of visionary
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          2  prudence, the City Council could prevail on the

          3  State and EPA to allow the City to upgrade the

          4  process at the Van Cortlandt plant to Ultra-membrane

          5  filtration, water ratepayers could save tens of

          6  millions of dollars on annual cost of energy and

          7  chemicals needed to operate the direct filtration

          8  process.

          9                 And why settle for one miracle?

         10  Imagine the megawatts we could save if the EPA

         11  allowed the City time to redesign the $579 million

         12  ultraviolet disinfection facility for the Cat/Del,

         13  which is, as fate would have it, already scheduled

         14  for construction. UV requires huge amounts of

         15  energy. Chorine dioxide, on the other hand,   a

         16  proven and widely used technology, would require a

         17  fraction of that energy to treat 90 percent of our

         18  water supply.

         19                 The filtration plant currently under

         20  construction in Van Cortlandt Park will use up to 32

         21  megawatts to treat 10 percent of our water supply,

         22  due largely to the power UV requires. It may be an

         23  inconvenient truth, but if drastic action is not

         24  taken now, global warming will be catastrophic to

         25  our City, our nation, and the world. It currently
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          2  contributes to the increasingly destructiveness of

          3  storms that devastate all of our watersheds.

          4                 However, the threat of global warming

          5  has more often been the subject of alarming

          6  conversation than a cause for meaningful action.

          7  Here New York City has a chance to become a leader

          8  in the fight to curb global warming, contribute to

          9  the nation's security by avoiding a technology that

         10  would measurably increase our energy dependence, and

         11  as the City with the greatest disparity between rich

         12  and poor in the nation, save water ratepayers from a

         13  portion of this increasingly regressive tax.

         14                 Finally, a sword of Damocles hangs

         15  over all of our watersheds - Indian Point, a few

         16  minutes flight from the Westchester County Airport.

         17  Why should it take a miracle for EPA, the Department

         18  of Homeland Security, the Department of Energy and

         19  the FAA to find a way to deal with this obvious

         20  threat so that it never happens that those who can

         21  wake up one night to find the region's water supply

         22  pipes glowing in the dark?

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         25  you. Thank you, David. And in your last paragraph,
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          2  you almost pay tribute to the former Chair of this

          3  Committee, Stan Michels, who --

          4                 MR. FERGUSON: Well, I wouldn't

          5  almost. I'd be happy to --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, no. But he

          7  commonly used the sword of Damocles --

          8                 MR. FERGUSON: I didn't realize that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. On like,

         10  you know, discussions and stuff, the whole sword of

         11  Damocles, that's like a Stan Michelsism.

         12                 MR. FERGUSON: Well, this one's a real

         13  big one.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, it is.

         15                 MR. FERGUSON: And it's up there.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We appreciate

         17  again --

         18                 MR. FERGUSON: I would hate to, if we

         19  survived some real bad nastiness, to have meetings

         20  like this where we were discussing what went wrong

         21  and how it will never happen again, and we'll now

         22  figure out a way. Because this is the time really to

         23  pay attention, and you're the people to do it,

         24  because you're really on the edge of all of this.

         25  And I thought what you said in terms of the role of
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          2  the City Council, in terms of this whole process,

          3  and regulators, as if the regulators in the City

          4  Administration existed apart from the City Council.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No. We're here,

          6  and we came to play.

          7                 So, thank you, David.

          8                 MR. FERGUSON: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I appreciate

         10  your comprehensive testimony. As always. I also

         11  direct the staff to give it utmost consideration.

         12  David and Eugenia and Paul, we appreciate everything

         13  that you have spoken today.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 And the last panel, Carolyn Summers,

         16  Arnold Frogel and Dorothy Williams-Pereira.

         17                 Oh, Dorothy. Hi, Dorothy.

         18                 Donna will swear you in.

         19                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         20  right hands.

         21                 In the testimony that you're about to

         22  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         23  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         24                 MS. SUMMERS: Yes.

         25                 MR. FROGEL: Yes.
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          2                 MS. WILLIAMS-PEREIRA: Yes.

          3                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, Carolyn.

          5  Why don't we start with you, Carolyn.

          6                 MS. SUMMERS: Hi. My name is Carolyn

          7  Summers.

          8                 Earlier today I faxed you this

          9  testimony as a letter, because I didn't think I

         10  would make it in time.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. You're

         12  here.

         13                 MS. SUMMERS: But you guys are still

         14  at it. I applaud your efforts. I was here on the

         15  last time the subject came up, I think it was last

         16  fall or last summer, an earlier iteration of this

         17  legislation. So, if you have a slight sense of de

         18  javu when you hear this, it's not that different.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: All right.

         20                 MS. SUMMERS: I'm a member of

         21  Federated Conservationists of Westchester County, a

         22  non-profit environmental coalition of over 50 member

         23  organizations, and hundreds of individuals. Of a

         24  long history of active support for protection of

         25  drinking water quality from New York City's water
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          2  supply.

          3                 My professional involvement with New

          4  York City's water supply dates to the early 1990s,

          5  when as Assistant Commissioner for Natural

          6  Resources, I was privileged to be a part of the New

          7  York City DEP team under Commissioner Appleton that

          8  began implementation of the City's Watershed Land

          9  Acquisition Project.

         10                 I am currently a land-owner in the

         11  Catskills, and unfortunately I see the negative

         12  impacts of unplanned development in the watershed on

         13  a regular basis.

         14                 I am also a New York City water

         15  consumer. I live in Hastings on Hudson. Our water

         16  comes from the New York City's water supply.

         17                 I appreciate the opportunity to

         18  testify in support of Intro. 375.

         19                 The sponsors of this legislation are

         20  to be commended for their vision and leadership

         21  embodied in this critical proposal.

         22                 The intention of the proposed

         23  legislation is to maintain the current high quality

         24  of our drinking water by preserving the forest

         25  wetlands and other undeveloped lands that
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          2  systematically cleanse and purify it.

          3                 This legislation would extend the

          4  City's current land acquisition program by providing

          5  an explicit achievable goal to require 75,000 acres

          6  over ten years, together with the funding necessary

          7  to implement that goal.

          8                 This is the single most effective

          9  step to take. Even with this goal in place, serious

         10  obstacles will remain.

         11                 Recent events, including Governor

         12  Pataki's final approval of a casino at Montecello

         13  Raceway, the newly-completed Bethel Music and Arts

         14  Center, and the proposed development at Belair have

         15  caused a run-up in land prices and rampant

         16  speculation.

         17                 Currently land prices are five to ten

         18  times higher than 1997 levels. As one example, in

         19  2005, a 20-acre parcel on the Neversink River

         20  upstream of the Reservoir sold for 200,000.

         21                 The world on Catskill streets is that

         22  the City's appraisers are not keeping up with recent

         23  comparables and are offering unrealistically low

         24  prices.

         25                 Consequently, many sellers are not
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          2  looking to participate in the City's land

          3  acquisition process.

          4                 In the coming years, the City's land

          5  acquisition staff will need to be far more

          6  aggressive and innovative as they raise the

          7  speculators for a dwindling supply of available land

          8  parcels.

          9                 Higher prices combined with a long

         10  history of distrust on the part of Catskills

         11  residents toward City officials argue for the use of

         12  intermediaries, especially in the development of

         13  conservation easements.

         14                 Land trusts are ideally suited for

         15  the type of time consuming negotiations necessary to

         16  bring easements to fruition.

         17                 The City's current policy of take it

         18  or leave it easements contracts does not sit well

         19  with most sellers of easements, who are essentially

         20  letting themselves in for a lifetime partnership of

         21  water quality stewardship with the City.

         22                 The Watershed Ag programs -- the

         23  Watershed Agricultural Program's easement program,

         24  their higher rate of success is at least partially

         25  due to its increased flexibility.
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          2                 I strongly support this legislation

          3  as you have proposed it because it would require DEP

          4  to develop a feasibility plan to meet the acreage

          5  pool through a greater use of easements and more

          6  work with local land trusts. Both would go far

          7  toward addressing the acquisition program flaws

          8  enumerated in my previous words.

          9                 Fully funding the acquisition program

         10  will provide greater credibility for the agency's

         11  efforts.

         12                 Regarding Kensico, I don't know,

         13  because I wasn't able to take the time to read

         14  carefully, but I don't know if you have a specific

         15  goal for acquisition at Kensico Reservoir in your

         16  current program, in your current proposed

         17  legislation.

         18                 I would recommend that you have one

         19  if you don't. This is the weakest link, Kensico is

         20  the weakest link in the entire Cat/Del System.

         21                 As far as Croton, I strongly support

         22  the legislation directing DEP to continue acquiring

         23  land in the Croton watershed.

         24                 While upfront costs are higher in

         25  Croton, up front real estate, the long-term
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          2  investment is real even for a system facing

          3  filtration.

          4                 At present, Croton only has marginal

          5  seasonal problems. Further deterioration from

          6  increased development would exponentially increase

          7  filtration costs.

          8                 Recreation. Recreation policy is the

          9  ultimate slippery slope.

         10                 I can only repeat the cautions given

         11  in my previous testimony of last fall or last

         12  summer.

         13                 Strictly speaking, the only truly

         14  compatible activity, at least in the sense of

         15  neutrally beneficial, is deer hunting, because

         16  hunters are actively removing possible sources of

         17  contaminants. All other activities may be more or

         18  less harmful, but the level of harm is dependent on

         19  the level of use.

         20                 Once use is allowed, it is extremely

         21  difficult, and in some cases unlawful to limit.

         22                 Watershed lands closer to the City

         23  are clearly more vulnerable to overuse. The

         24  long-term costs of over-use of water supply lands

         25  needs to be carefully considered.
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          2                 Thank you, Chairman Gennaro and

          3  members of the staff for initiating this legislation

          4  and for giving me the opportunity to comment.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Ms.

          6  Summers. I appreciate you being here again and your

          7  continued diligence on this issue. We greatly

          8  appreciate it. I'm glad we were still going and you

          9  came here and we got this in person.

         10                 Mr. Frogel.

         11                 MR. FROGEL: I'm Arnold Frogel. I'm a

         12  member of New York City Group of the Sierra Club.

         13  And I am a consumer of Croton water. I live on the

         14  west side of Manhattan, and I'm aware of the changes

         15  in color of our water, as seasonal changes take

         16  place Upstate, and I endorse, actually I'm talking

         17  about Intro. 375. I forgot to put that on my slip. I

         18  endorse the greater attention that your Committee

         19  and this legislation gives to the acquisition of

         20  land in the Croton watershed.

         21                 I think that's a change, welcome

         22  change, and I hope that DEP pursues that goal, the

         23  goal of acquiring more land there in a more earnest

         24  manner. And I have to say that I've sat in many

         25  Planning Board hearing in Westchester and in Putnam
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          2  where there was no representation by DEP, for

          3  whatever proposal of development was taking place,

          4  and I hope that changes. I think that must change,

          5  and DEP policy on that kind of matter must change in

          6  order to protect the Croton Watershed.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          9  you, Mr. Frogel.

         10                 MS. WILLIAMS-PEREIRA: My name is

         11  Dorothy Williams-Pereira. I'm on the Citizens Action

         12  -- no. Citizens' Advisory Committee of DEP. That

         13  meets in the Academy of Science.

         14                 I'm also the Co-Chairman of

         15  Deregulations and Enforcement, and I came here to

         16  cry. I came here to cry because --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Don't cry,

         18  Dorothy.

         19                 MS. WILLIAMS-PEREIRA: Because -- I

         20  don't cry too easily anyhow, but we've got to

         21  protect our water supply. There's a water cycle. You

         22  know, I learned it in science. There's a water cycle

         23  and it goes through the sewerage, through the soil,

         24  through the air, through all the pollutants, and if

         25  there's a slippery slope, the slippery slope is the
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          2  deregulation, the lowering of standards, which I

          3  know are happening because I'm on the committee that

          4  hears about it directly from DEP, and it scares me.

          5                 We better worry about the bacteria in

          6  our water, we better worry about the pollutants and

          7  heavy metals in our sewerage that's being used as

          8  fertilizer for our vegetables. It's being sold. How

          9  much mercury is in your sewerage depends on whether

         10  it's sold as fertilizer. And then there's another

         11  problem with DEP, there's DEC and EPA, and whose

         12  authority, whose jurisdiction is it? We have to

         13  listen to it every time we go to a meeting.

         14                 It's pathetic. We all drink the water

         15  --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Could you

         17  restrict your comments to the bill? That's what we

         18  want to hear about.

         19                 MS. WILLIAMS-PEREIRA: Well, to

         20  anything. To anything that protects our water. I

         21  know that you have been a long-time protector of the

         22  environment, it's actually what you studied in

         23  college, and you've got to get these things passed,

         24  and you've got to understand also the kinds of

         25  eroding that is going on, that we have to have more
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          2  and more of these laws to protect our water.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You support

          4  these bills, do you, Dorothy?

          5                 MS. WILLIAMS-PEREIRA: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good.

          7                 MS. WILLIAMS-PEREIRA: I do.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

          9  Dorothy. I always appreciate seeing you.

         10                 Mr. Frogel, I know this is not your

         11  first time before the Committee either. Thank you.

         12  Thank you very much for giving us the benefit of

         13  your views.

         14                 Ms. Summers, thank you, not only for

         15  coming here and being part of this legislative

         16  process, for all your good work in the past on, you

         17  know, working with Al Appleton, getting the current

         18  Land Act in place, we're grateful to you for that.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 MS. WILLIAMS-PEREIRA: Also, maybe

         21  more people would like to come to join the Citizens

         22  Advisories.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. And people

         24  watching on television, you heard that from Dorothy,

         25  and anyone should participate in any way possible,
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          2  you know, Citizens Advisory Committees, Civic

          3  Associations. The more involved citizenry we have,

          4  the better.

          5                 Thank you very much. And with no one

          6  else wishing to be hear, this hearing is adjourned.

          7  I'd like to thank in a very, very special way,

          8  before I adjourn, the staff who work so hard. Donna

          9  DeCostanzo, Peter Washburn, Danny Avery, Jean

         10  Iverson, and we've got testimony from League of

         11  Conservation Voters, Westchester Land Trust, New

         12  Yorkers for Parks, and that is all the testimony

         13  that we received. Thank you all very much. Once

         14  again, this hearing is adjourned.

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 4:30 p.m.)
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